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Tokyu’s Railway Network

• In April 2000, Tokyu 
Corporation announced a new 

Tokyu Group Management Policy in a move 
to maximize shareholder value. 

• Since the introduction of the plan, the company has 
made steady progress in reorganizing a broad spectrum of 

Group operations. Notably, adhering to a strategy of “selection and 
concentration,” Tokyu has integrated its hotel business and trans-

portation trade business, divested certain Group companies engaged in 
the taxi business and withdrawn from petroleum sales operations.

• At the same time, Tokyu is blazing new trails in growth frontiers such as 
the real estate investment trusts business and in media operations utiliz-
ing high-speed cable networks. 
• And in Shibuya, Tokyu’s home ground and the hub of its operations, the 
company has completed two major mixed-use building projects in the last 
two years: Shibuya Mark City and Cerulean Tower. In railway operations, 
Tokyu is increasing capacity and alleviating congestion by multi-tracking 
certain sectors of track, and investing in other ways to add value to 

railway services. These actions are 
measurably enhancing the image of areas along Tokyu lines.

• All of the above demonstrate Tokyu’s wholehearted 
commitment to fulfilling its social responsibilities while 

building the Tokyu brand into a first-choice trade-
mark of excellence, trusted and admired uni-

versally. 
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Forward-Looking Statements
This report is intended to provide information on business results for fiscal 

2000, the year ended 31st March, 2001 and the outlook for Tokyu 

Corporation. It is not to be construed as a solicitation for investments. The 

outlook and plans are based on judgments made by management at the 

time of publication. Therefore, no representation or warranty has been 

made or is given regarding the attainability of estimates and projections. 

Opinions expressed herein are subject to change without notice.
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(¥ Billions)

NET INCOME
(¥ Billions)

TOTAL ASSETS
(¥ Billions)

TOKYU CORPORATION   Annual Report 2001

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Results for the year:
 Revenue from operations                                                                                                          ¥ 995,228             ¥1,012,890             $ 8,103,120

 Operating income                                                                                                                              60,417                      64,374                    514,992

 Net income (loss)                                                                                                                                  1,765                   (30,164)                 (241,312)

Amounts per share (in yen and dollars):
 Net income (loss)                                                                                                                                  ¥1.62                     ¥(27.50)                       $(0.22)

 Cash dividends (actual)                                                                                                                         5.00                            5.00                            0.04

Year-end financial position:
 Total assets                                                                                                                                    ¥2,510,747             ¥2,499,886            $19,999,088

 Shareholders’ equity                                                                                                                        158,859                   139,067                 1,112,536
Notes: (1) This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained elsewhere in this annual report.
             (2) The accompanying U.S. dollar figures have been translated from Japanese yen for convenience, and as a matter of arithmetical computation 

only, at the rate of ¥125 to $1, and so throughout.

Financial Highlights
TOKYU CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Years ended 31st March, 2000 and 2001
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Growth strategies

In June 2001, Tokyu Corporation formed a three-way business alliance with Tokyu Land Corporation and Australia’s

 Lend Lease Corporation, with the aim of becoming a leader in the real estate investment trust (REIT) business in 

Japan. Lend Lease has expanded its real estate-related operations into over 40 countries worldwide. Lend Lease 

enjoys a worldwide reputation in the management of REITs, and holds the No.1 position in the management of 

tax-exempt real estate assets in the U.S. 

Entry into the REIT business will not only increase opportunities in real estate development and management,

 but will also enable returns to be reinvested into property development in areas along our railway lines, thus 

enhancing the value of areas served by Tokyu’s railway operations. We are currently proceeding with a feasibility 

study to list a real estate investment corporation, to be established for the purpose of launching REIT operations in

 Japan,  in fiscal 2002.

Message From Management
TOKYU CORPORATION   Annual Report 2001

  
In fiscal 2000, the   

year ended 31st March, 2001, 
we implemented the Tokyu Group 

Management Policy, originally 
formulated in April 2000. As such, the 
year heralded a new beginning for us. 
Under this policy, we have reviewed the 

group’s business activities, strength-
ened management, and worked to 

promote growth strategies in 
order to maximize 
shareholder value. 

2
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The group’s media operations are critical to adding value to areas alongside or near Tokyu’s stations and tracks.

 Accordingly, we are pressing ahead with the improvement of infrastructure and content. 

In terms of infrastructure, Tokyu has entered into a strategic alliance with Sony Corporation. Under the terms of

 the alliance, Sony has raised its equity interest in Tokyu Cable Television Co., Ltd. to 15% through a private placement

 of shares. Tokyu Cable Television was subsequently renamed “its communications Inc.” This company is now working

 to transform itself into a  “broadband communications and entertainment” firm. 

In terms of content, we have launched “Precce Net”, an Internet supermarket designed to enhance the quality of

 life of residents of Idios Azamino, a large-scale real estate development project along Den-en Toshi Line. “Precce 

Net” aims to provide greater convenience for residents, and to distinguish Idios Azamino as a quality residence. 

Grandberry Mall, an open mall-style shopping complex, opened in April 2000. The mall is one of three major 

facilities recently opened by Tokyu Corporation to add still more value to areas alongside its railway lines. The 

Grandberry Mall recorded sales of ¥17 billion and was visited by 7.6 million people, 27% more than forecast, in the

 first year of its operations. Moreover, the market turned out to be much larger than our initial projection of 1.08 

million people living within a 5- to 7-kilometer radius. To our surprise, the Grandberry Mall has attracted shoppers

 from as far as 30 kilometers away, encompassing an area with an estimated population of 12 million. As such, we 

expect sustained growth in the years ahead.  

The Shibuya Mark City complex, which provides office, hotel and shopping facilities, opened in April 2000. 

Shibuya Excel Hotel Tokyu, situated within the Mark City complex, has achieved a high average occupancy rate

 of 94% for fiscal 2000. Shibuya Tokyu Inn was also very popular, with occupancy rates averaging 93% for the year.

      Cerulean Tower, a high-rise building which provides office and hotel space, opened in April 2001. The project 

mirrored the successful debut of Mark City, starting off with its office space fully occupied and is satisfying the 

strong demand for office space in Shibuya. Moreover, Cerulean Tower Tokyu Hotel has earned high marks for its 

facilities and services, and has gotten off to a good start. 

The group intends to further cultivate and strengthen its customer base in areas along Tokyu lines by 

implementing various growth strategies.

Reorganization through selection and concentration

To pave the way for the integration of the group’s domestic hotel operations, to begin in January 2002, Tokyu Hotel

 Chain Co., Ltd. was made into a wholly owned, consolidated subsidiary of Tokyu Corporation through an exchange

 of shares in July 2001.

This process began with the establishment of committees in the two firms responsible for preparing for 

integration.  They have worked together to develop plans to integrate the two companies’ marketing and personnel

3
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 systems, under the direction of Tokyu Corporation’s

 hotel division. Moreover, certain hotels in the 

Tokyu Hotel Chain are likely to be rebranded Inn-

 or Excel-grade hotels. As part of our overhaul of

 Tokyu Inn Chain’s unprofitable operations, Saga

 Tokyu Inn has been effectively closed, and the 

transfer of operation of Tateshina Tokyu Resort 

has been completed. 

In July 2001,  the Tokyu Hotels Reservation 

Center was  established, combining reservations and

 sales promotion activities of the two companies. 

The Tokyu group’s transportation trade divi-

sion will combine operations with those of Sotestu

 Transportation Co., Ltd., listed on the Second 

Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange, and other companies, through a merger and an exchange of shares. To be 

renamed Tokyu Logistic Co., Ltd., the new firm is expected to start operations by April 2002.

The integration will support commercial development and the e-business (last-mile) initiative specified by the

 Tokyu area revitalization plan, which forms the nucleus of our management policy, and contribute to increasing 

added value to areas along our railway lines. 

Tokyu Logistic Co. will have consolidated revenue of approximately ¥40 billion. Tokyu Corporation’s equity 

interest in the new firm will increase from 35% to 49%, thus transforming it into a consolidated subsidiary. Because

 Tokyu Freight Service Co., Ltd. and Tokyo Tsuun Co., Ltd. are already consolidated subsidiaries, consolidated 

revenue at Sotestu Transportation Co. (¥15.9 billion in the year ended March 2001) will be included in Tokyu 

Corporation’s consolidated revenue. 

In small-lot freight services, the three companies have a long track record in door-to-door parcel delivery for 

mid- and end-of-year gift parcels for department stores. The integration of the three firms will strengthen the 

company’s operations base, improve the delivery network and enhance their ability to satisfy demand for logistics

 services in areas along Tokyu railway lines. 

Tokyu Corporation has sold certain subsidiaries engaged in taxi operations in Hokkaido and Gunma prefecture

 to Daiichikoutsu Co., Ltd., a major player in the taxi industry listed on the Fukuoka Stock Exchange.

Kiyofumi Kamijo
President & 
Representative Director

Shinobu Shimizu
Chairman of the Board & 
Representative Director
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In addition, we withdrew from oil and gasoline sales operations in March 2001 having recorded operating losses

 of ¥1 billion on sales of ¥12.7 billion in the term ended March 2001.

Hokumon Bus Co., Ltd. operating in Hokkaido, left the group through an EBO (Employee Buy-Out) that was the 

first for any Japanese bus company.

The number of group companies at the end of March 2001 was 434, compared with a peak of 493 at the end

 of March 1999. During the past two fiscal years, we divested 83 group companies through liquidations, mergers,

 and share transfers. The number of new group companies was 24, including both newly established companies

 and acquisitions. 

Improving group management

The proposals outlined above were discussed and approved at the Tokyu Group Corporate Executive Committee 

established in April 2000. The standing members of the committee comprise three representative directors, including

 the Chairman and President. The committee’s role is to undertake rapid strategic decision-making for the Tokyu 

Group and to enable the smooth implementation of group management. 

Maximizing shareholder value

Implementation of the initiatives laid out in the Tokyu Group Management Policy will enable us to meet our 

immediate target of bringing down interest-bearing debt to less than 10 times EBITDA by March 2003. Thus far, 

interest-bearing debt has been reduced by ¥220 billion, and EBITDA has improved by around 30%, bringing the 

ratio of interest-bearing debt to EBITDA to 11.5 times in the year ended March 2001 compared with 16.1 times in 

the year ended March 1999, the basis year for the formulation of the Tokyu Group Management Policy. The Tokyu

 Group is committed to raising shareholder value by steadily implementing measures consistent with group 

management policies.

Shinobu Shimizu                                                                             Kiyofumi Kamijo

Chairman of the Board & Representative Director                                    President & Representative Director

August 2001

5
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Reinventing the Tokyu Group
TOKYU CORPORATION   Annual Report 2001

6

1 Basic management policy

Tokyu Group’s roots go back to the establishment of the Meguro-Kamata Railway Company in 

1922. The Group has now expanded to 434 companies and 10 public corporations, with Tokyu 

Corporation as the nucleus. The Group’s core operations focus on urban development centered 

on railway operations. Over the years, the group has diversified to provide a wide range of services

 related to the daily lives of the people in the communities it serves. The Group is also actively 

involved in social programs and environmental activities through foundations, social activities, 

and Tokyu Association programs. 

By building a business deeply rooted in local communities, the Group seeks to fulfill its social

 responsibilities. In 1997, the Group spelled out its core management policy: “Work independently

 and in collaboration to raise Group synergy and establish a trusted and beloved brand.” Toward 

this goal, the Group adopted the slogan “Toward a Beautiful Age,” and has been working toward 

“Creating a Beautiful Living Environment” to meet varying consumer needs and to make Tokyu 

the brand of choice.

To ensure continuing growth in the 21st century, we are implementing the measures outlined

 in the Tokyu Group Management Policy of April 2000. The management plan emphasizes Tokyu 

Corporation’s position as the principal shareholder of the companies comprising the Tokyu Group

 and as the owner of the Tokyu brand. The Tokyu Group Management Policy sets forth a new 

approach to the management of the entire group and broadly outlines a plan of action that 

adheres to this approach. These initiatives will help us to reinvent the Tokyu Group by March 2003.

 

Medium-to long-term management strategy and issues ahead 

The Group has formulated a basic policy based on the “Establishment of Group Governance led by

 the Parent Company,” “Growth through joint business tie-ups and alliances,” and “Risk Management

 Through Compliance” in order to realize our doctrine of “Independence and Collaboration.”

In order to implement our basic policies, we identified our core priorities. First, we defined our

 core businesses as our urban development business, which seeks to revitalize areas along our 

railway lines, including strategic terminals such as Shibuya, and our brand business, which seeks 

to build a strong Tokyu brand. The Group’s business will be reorganized through selection and 

concentration. Thus far, we have sold certain group taxi companies and withdrawn from petroleum

 sales. In addition, we established Tokyu Hotel Management Co., Ltd. and in July made Tokyu Hotel

 Chain Co., Ltd. a wholly owned subsidiary, as part of our drive to reorganize our hotel business. 

Plans call for consolidating our three logistics services firms by merging them with Sotetsu 

Transportation Co., Ltd. by April 2002. 

Second, in order to improve the effectiveness of the management policy, we will streamline the

 decision-making process, and enhance the performance evaluation system, and brand management.

2
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Third, we will formulate growth strategies, including those for media operations and bolstering

 our customer base.  We will focus our resources on Shibuya and in areas along our railway lines to

 revitalize our existing businesses. Establishment of Tokyu Real Estate Investment Management 

Inc. and our business alliance with Lend Lease Corp., to diversify into the real estate investment 

trust business, and expanding the “ranKing ranQueen” store chain established in July to add new

 services to train stations, are parts of the program to accelerate growth.

We are confident that successful implementation of these business measures will maximize 

shareholder value.

Realigning Tokyu Group management

In April 2000, we formed The Tokyu Group Corporate Executive Committee, chaired by the Chairman

 of the Board. Establishing this decision-making committee to systematically define policies that 

involve the exercise of rights and the fulfillment of obligations under the Commercial Code shows

 our commitment to enhancing management transparency. The committee will be responsible 

for major business decisions and capital policy for the group companies, evaluation of the 

performance of group companies in the Tokyu Group and brand management. Needless to say, 

group companies will comply strictly with the resolutions approved by the Board of Directors and

 at the general shareholders’ meeting. The new organization will thus separate strategic 

decision-making and execution of operations. With this development the Company has taken 

another step in the direction of operating as a holding company.

In July 2000, we implemented several corporate reorganization measures, setting up Corporate

 Headquarters and New Business Strategy Headquarters to establish a foundation from which to 

fully implement the Tokyu Group’s business policies. Corporate Headquarters will be responsible 

for restructuring the Group’s business and developing Group management systems, to place the 

Group’s business on a sound footing. New Business Strategy Headquarters will promote the group’s

 growth strategies in order to revitalize our business and increase profitability.  

Management performance targets

Management performance criteria set by the Corporate Executive Committee will be applied to 

all group companies, including non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates. In order to raise brand

 equity, the Company, as the principal shareholder of the Tokyu Group, will continue to oversee 

business operations and provide management guidance in line with the rights and obligations 

prescribed by the Commercial Code of Japan, until individual group companies return to sound 

financial health and are capable of operating independently of the parent company.

By applying cash flow-based parameters, we intend to restore the profitability of mainstay 

businesses of group companies and the ability to service interest-bearing debt, and to reduce the

 ratio of interest-bearing debt to EBITDA (operating income + depreciation and amortization) to 10

 times or less by March 2003.  The Tokyu Group will make a concerted effort to achieve these goals.

7
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Real Estate

Review of Operations
TOKYU CORPORATION   Annual Report 2001

Railway operations: The Company operates seven rail lines and a streetcar 

line—Toyoko Line, Meguro Line, Den-en Toshi Line, Oimachi Line, Ikegami Line, Tamagawa

 Line, Kodomonokuni Line and Setagaya line – all based in southwest Tokyo and Kanagawa

 prefecture. The total track length is 102.1 kilometers. Izukyu Corporation, a consolidated

 subsidiary, operates a 45.7km line between Ito and Izukyu Shimoda in the Izu peninsula.

 Ueda Kotsu Corp., another consolidated subsidiary, operates an 11.6km-long passenger

 line between Ueda and Bessho Onsen, in Nagano prefecture. 

Bus operations: Tokyu Bus Corp. operates bus services on regular routes in the 

southwest Tokyo and Kanagawa prefecture. In Hokkaido, Jotetsu Corp. operates scheduled

 bus services, and also provides chartered bus services. Tokyu Shachi Bus Co., Ltd. provides

 chartered bus services in Aichi prefecture.  Gunma Bus Corp. provides bus services on 

regular routes and chartered bus services in Gunma prefecture.

Cargo transportation: Freight transportation services are provided by Nihon 

Kamotsu Kyuso Co., Ltd., Tokyo Tsuun Co., Ltd. and Tokyu Freight Service Co., Ltd., 

consolidated subsidiaries, and Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd, an affiliate. Most of their 

operations are centered in metropolitan Tokyo. The light and heavy cargoes carried extend

 from fresh food and living essentials to steel and other construction materials. The Group

 also offers a wide range of logistics services, including packaging and warehousing. Tokyu

 Air Cargo Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary, is engaged in freight forwarding of air and

 marine cargoes. The company provides all required import and export-related services,

 including customs clearance, delivery services, warehousing and packaging.

Flight operations: Japan Air System Co., Ltd, an affiliate, operates scheduled and 

non-scheduled flights, mainly on domestic routes.

Real estate sales: Mainstay operations include urban development, centering on 

the Tama Den-en Toshi (“Tama Garden City”) urban housing and redevelopment project,

 housing construction and marketing, and real estate consulting. Tokyu Land Corp., an 

affiliate, is engaged in residential land development and marketing, and the construction

 and marketing of detached houses, medium-to high-rise condominiums, and resort 

housing. The company is also engaged in joint marketing of houses built-for-sale, a 

system in which the company works with Tokyu Corporation to build and market family

 homes on residential land developed by Tokyu Corporation.

Real estate leasing: Real estate leasing operations primarily focus on renting office

 buildings, mainly along the railway lines we operate in Tokyo and Kanagawa prefecture.

 Tokyu Land Corp., an affiliate, is also engaged in real estate leasing business, mainly 

office building leasing, and operates primarily in the Tokyo metropolitan area, the Kinki

 region and in major regional cities.

Real estate management: Tokyu Community Corp., an affiliate, and Tokyu Service

 Corp. and Tokyu Building Service Inc., both consolidated subsidiaries, are engaged in 

Toyoko Line

Tokyu Land Corporation: Asumigaoka

Grandberry Mall

Transportation
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Leisure and 
Services 

Retail

Travel agency: Tokyu Tourist Corp., a consolidated subsidiary, partners with major 

transportation companies, hotels, Japanese inns, and tourist facilities to provide domestic

 travel services for individuals, groups and educational institutions like schools. For 

overseas travel, the company partners with international airlines, hotels overseas and 

local travel agents. Services include overseas travel arrangements for individuals and 

groups.

Hotel operations: In hotel operations, Tokyu Corporation works closely with several 

group companies to operate the Tokyu Inn Chain (45 hotels), which comprises three 

brands: Tokyu Inn, Excel Hotel Tokyu and Tokyu Resort. In overseas hotel operations, 

consolidated subsidiary Pan Pacific Hotels and Resorts PTE. Ltd. operates hotels and 

provides hotel management services. The company manages 16 hotels in 10 countries, 

most of them in the Asia-Pacific region. An affiliate, Tokyu Hotel Chain Co., Ltd., is also 

engaged in the operation and management of hotels, and manages 17 hotels in Japan. The

 company became a wholly owned subsidiary of Tokyu Corporation in July 2001.

comprehensive building management services (management of building facilities, 

cleaning and security services, etc.), and condominium management services (administra-

tion, facilities management, etc.).

Real estate brokerage services: Tokyu Livable Inc., an affiliate, has an extensive 

network closely linked to local communities in major cities in the Kanto region and 

surrounding areas, where it offers real estate brokerage and related services.

Cerulean Tower Tokyu Hotel

Department store operations: Tokyu Department Store Co., Ltd., an affiliate, 

operates department stores in Shibuya, Kichijoji, Machida and Sapporo.

Retail operations: Tokyu Store Chain Co., Ltd., another affiliate, operates chain stores,

 handling foods, apparel, and household necessities, principally in metropolitan Tokyo. 

Sapporo Tokyu Store Chain Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary, operates a similar chain, 

with most of its stores in Sapporo City in Hokkaido.

General trading operations: Tokyu Geox Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary, 

manufactures and markets aggregates, and Kowa Co., Ltd., another consolidated 

subsidiary, mainly deals with petrol and construction materials.

Petroleum sales: Petrol is purchased directly from refineries to be sold at our directly

 managed petrol stations, located mainly in the region of our railways, or directly to some

 major users. The Company withdrew from petrol gas sales as of the end of March 2001.

Tokyu Department Store Co., Ltd.: Main store
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Other 
Businesses

Construction

Review of Operations
TOKYU CORPORATION   Annual Report 2001

Tokyu Construction Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary, is engaged in the construction of 

housing, office buildings, government buildings, highways, railway lines and land 

development. Seikitokyu Kogyo Co., Ltd., an affiliate, focuses on civil engineering projects, 

road pavement, water works, and other general construction contracting.

In other businesses, Tokyu Car Corp., an affiliate, specializes in the manufacture of rolling stock,

 specialty vehicles and elevated parking systems. Toyoko Industry Co., Ltd., a consolidated 

subsidiary, focuses on the design, manufacture, testing and maintenance of equipment for 

rolling stock, and on railroad-related electrical construction work. 

In automotive parts, Shiroki Corp., an affiliate, manufactures and markets automobile parts,

 including door sashes (an important automobile part), and also is engaged in subcontract 

manufacturing of automotive parts for automobile manufacturers.

In food products processing, Gold Pak Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary, manufactures 

and markets health foods: mainly vegetable juices.

Tokyu Construction Co., Ltd.: Construction 
work on an overhead crossing, Meguro Line

Tokyu Car Corporation: Elevated 
parking systems

Golf course operations: Tokyu Corporation operates “Five Hundred Club,” a golf 

club in Susono City in Shizuoka Prefecture, and seven other golf courses in Japan. There

 are ten other golf-course operators within the Group, including Three Hundred Club Co.,

 Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary.

CATV operations:  Consolidated subsidiary Tokyu Cable Television Co., Ltd., renamed

 “its communications Inc.” in August 2001, offers CATV service and Internet provider 

services through a fiber-optics network and a co-axial cable network, primarily in areas 

along the Company’s railway lines. 

its communications Inc.: CATV service

Five Hundred Club
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Tokyu Corporation (the Company) comprises 223 consolidated subsidiaries, and 1 non-consolidated subsidiary and 46 affiliated 
companies accounted for by the equity method. Operations are divided into six divisions: Transportation, Real Estate, Retail, Leisure 
and Services, Construction, and Other. The specific activities carried out by each division and the composition in terms of parent, 
subsidiary and affiliated company involvement are as follows:

Subsidiaries
97 companies, including the parent

Main companies:
Tokyu Tourist Corporation

Tokyu Inn Chain,
Pan Pacific Hotels and Resorts Pte. Ltd.
Three Hundred Club Co., Ltd.

its communications Inc.*
Nippon Rent’a Car Tokyu Co., Ltd.

Retail
30 companies, including the parent

Main businesses:
Department store operations
Retail operations

General trading operations
Petroleum sales

Leisure and Services
116 companies, including the parent

Main businesses:
Travel agency
Movie theater operations
Hotel operations

Golf course operations

Advertising agency
CATV operations
Rental car operations

Construction
17 companies

Main business:
Construction

Subsidiaries
14 companies

Main company:
Tokyu Construction Co., Ltd.

Affiliates
3 companies (All are equity-method affiliates)

Main company:
Seikitokyu Kogyo Co., Ltd.

Other
31 companies

Main businesses:
Maintenance of rolling stock for railway 
 operations
Automotive parts sales
Telecommunications marketing
Research activities
Food products manufacturing

Subsidiaries
25 companies

Main companies:
Toyoko Industry Co., Ltd.

Toyoko Denko Co., Ltd.
Tokyu Research Institute, Inc.
Gold Pak Co., Ltd.

Affiliates
6 companies (All are equity-method affiliates)

Main companies:
Tokyu Car Corporation

Shiroki Corporation

Transportation
55 companies, including the parent

Main businesses:
Railway operations

Bus operations

Flight operations
Cargo transportation

Subsidiaries
52 companies, including the parent

Main companies:
Tokyu Corporation,
Izukyu Corporation
Tokyu Bus Corporation,
Jotetsu Corporation

Tokyu Air Cargo Co., Ltd.,
Tokyu Freight Service Co., Ltd.

Affiliates
3 companies (All are equity-method affiliates)

Main companies:

Japan Air System Co., Ltd. (JAS)
Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd.

Real Estate
42 companies, including the parent

Main businesses:
Real estate sales
Real estate leasing

Real estate management

Real estate brokerage services

Subsidiaries
31 companies, including the parent

Main companies:
Tokyu Corporation
Tokyu YMM Properties Co., Ltd.,
Shibuya Development Inc.
Tokyu Service Corporation,
Tokyu Building Service, Inc.

Affiliates
11 companies (All are equity-method affiliates)

Main companies:
Tokyu Land Corporation

Tokyu Community Corp.

Tokyu Livable, Inc.

Subsidiaries
24 companies, including the parent

Main companies:

Sapporo Tokyu Store Chain Co., Ltd.

Tokyu Geox Co., Ltd.
Tokyu Corporation

Affiliates
6 companies (All are equity-method affiliates)

Main companies:
Tokyu Department Store Co., Ltd.
Tokyu Store Chain Co., Ltd.,
Tokyu Hands Inc.

Affiliates
19 companies (17 companies are equity-method affiliates)

Main companies:

Tokyu Recreation Co., Ltd.
Tokyu Hotel Chain Co., Ltd.

Tokyu Agency Inc.

*Tokyu Cable Television Co., Ltd. changed its trade name to its communications Inc. on 1st August, 2001
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I. Results of Operations
Financial Results Summary

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 Yen (millions) except per share data

Years ended March 31,                                                                                                                                                                   1999                     2000                      2001

Revenue from operations                                                                                                                                ¥573,424          ¥995,228        ¥1,012,890
Cost of revenue from operations                                                                                                                     524,459            934,811               948,516
Operating income                                                                                                                                                   48,965               60,417                 64,374
Other income                                                                                                                                                            30,228               55,085                 59,085
Other expenses                                                                                                                                                        93,718            109,669               148,448
Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests 
 in losses of consolidated subsidiaries                                                                                                          (14,525)                 5,833              (24,989)
Income taxes                                                                                                                                                             14,533                 7,107                 10,129

Income (loss) before minority interests in losses of consolidated subsidiaries                               (29,058)              (1,274)              (35,118)
Minority interests in losses of consolidated subsidiaries                                                                              1,158                 3,039                    4,954
Net income (loss)                                                                                                                                                  (27,900)                 1,765              (30,164)
Per share:
Net income (loss)                                                                                                                                                  ¥  (25.85)              ¥  1.62             ¥  (27.50)
Cash dividends                                                                                                                                                              5.00                   5.00                       5.00

Consolidated revenue from operations of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for fiscal 2000, the year ended March 31, 
2001, rose 1.8 percent year on year to ¥1,012,890 million (US$8,103 million). Consolidated revenue rose largely on higher sales in the 
Company’s Transportation Division and the inclusion of Izukyu Corporation in consolidated accounts, as well as higher sales in the 
Company’s Real Estate Division and at Tokyu Construction Co., Ltd.
 Consolidated operating income rose 6.6 percent to ¥64,374 million (US$515 million) from ¥60,417 million, the primary factors 
contributing to growth in consolidated operating income were higher revenue in the Transportation Division, including that at the 
Company and Tokyu Bus Corporation, and lower losses reflecting improvement in the revenue/expense balance in the Leisure and 
Services Division at the Company and Tokyu Tourist Corporation.
 Consolidated income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests in losses of consolidated subsidiaries was a loss of ¥24,989 
million (US$200 million), compared with income of ¥5,833 million a year ago.
 Extraordinary loss resulting from amortization of ¥69,546 million arising from adoption of retirement benefit accounting was the 
primary factor behind consolidated loss before income taxes and minority interests.
 Consequently, a consolidated net loss of ¥30,164 million (US$241 million) was recorded, reversing a year-ago net income of ¥1,765
 million. Dividends per share were maintained at ¥5.00 (US$0.04).
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Segment Information

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       Yen (millions)

Years ended March 31,                                                                                                                                                                   1999                     2000                      2001

Revenue from operations:
 Transportation                                                                                                                                                ¥197,727          ¥238,576           ¥ 256,633
 Real estate                                                                                                                                                           131,449            125,282               145,348
 Retail                                                                                                                                                                     138,302            104,529                 98,708
 Leisure and services                                                                                                                                           95,686            139,198               149,129
 Construction                                                                                                                                                            1,823            372,761               348,920
 Other                                                                                                                                                                          8,437               14,882                 14,152

 Consolidated                                                                                                                                                   ¥573,424          ¥995,228        ¥1,012,890

Cost of revenue from operations:
 Transportation                                                                                                                                                ¥164,131          ¥209,742           ¥ 223,041
 Real estate                                                                                                                                                           115,684            100,270               127,724
 Retail                                                                                                                                                                     145,401            107,832               101,130
 Leisure and services                                                                                                                                         106,128            152,986               155,541
 Construction                                                                                                                                                            3,304            410,969               397,481
 Other                                                                                                                                                                       11,918               16,548                 18,141

 Elimination/Headquarters                                                                                                                              (22,107)            (63,536)              (74,542)
 Consolidated                                                                                                                                                   ¥524,459          ¥934,811           ¥ 948,516

Operating income:
 Transportation                                                                                                                                                  ¥ 34,911           ¥ 30,351             ¥ 36,754
 Real estate                                                                                                                                                             21,958               28,870                 22,348
 Retail                                                                                                                                                                          (323)                    (65)                        295
 Leisure and services                                                                                                                                           (8,304)            (11,840)                 (4,944)
 Construction                                                                                                                                                                  19               14,952                 14,714
 Other                                                                                                                                                                             573                 1,909                    1,502

 Elimination/Headquarters                                                                                                                                      131              (3,760)                 (6,295)
 Consolidated                                                                                                                                                     ¥ 48,965           ¥ 60,417             ¥ 64,374

Note: The figures for 1999 in the following graphs are based on the previous classification of segment information. The figures for 2000 through 2001, 
however, are based on the new classification that became effective in the year under review (see Note 14 on page 33).

Transportation: Revenue from operations in this division were ¥256,633 million (US$2,053 million), up 7.6 percent year on year.
 Revenue growth largely came from increased passenger traffic brought about by development of commercial facilities along the 
Company’s railway lines, and inclusion of Izukyu Corporation in consolidated accounts.
 Divisional operating income increased 21.1 percent to ¥36,754 million (US$294 million).
 Divisional operating income rose mainly due to higher revenue at the Company, and favorable passenger loads at Tokyu Bus 
Corporation, operating in the Tokyo metropolitan area.

REVENUES (¥ Billions) OPERATING INCOME (¥ Billions)
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Real Estate: Revenue from operations increased 16.0 percent to ¥145,348 million (US$1,163 million).
 Led by sales in Tama Den-en Toshi, sales to both the consumer and corporate sectors were favorable. Tokyu Construction Co., Ltd. 
also reported higher revenue reflecting concerted efforts to recover investments. Divisional operating income fell 22.6% to ¥22,348 
million (US$179 million) despite higher revenue. This was mainly due to the sale of large-scale properties in Tokyu’s real estate business.

REVENUES (¥ Billions) OPERATING INCOME (¥ Billions)

REVENUES (¥ Billions) OPERATING INCOME (¥ Billions)

REVENUES (¥ Billions) OPERATING INCOME (¥ Billions)

Retail: Revenue from operations dropped 5.6 percent to ¥98,708 million (US$790 million).
 Revenue in the Retail Division was affected by lower sales growth at Sapporo Tokyu Store Chain Co., Ltd. reflecting lower prices, a 
result of intensifying competition, and lower oil and gasoline sales as the Company closed down these operations. The combination of
 these factors markedly affected sales.
 The division recorded an operating income of ¥295 million (US$2 million), a ¥360 million improvement over the previous fiscal year.
    Operating income rose as a result of cost cutting, particularly in personnel expenses.

Leisure and Services: Revenue from operations increased 7.1 percent to ¥149,129 million (US$1,193 million), but the divisional operating
 loss rose to ¥4,944 million (US$40 million).
 Primary factors fueling divisional revenue growth were favorable occupancy rates and restaurant sales at newly opened hotels in 
Japan, and a growing subscriber base at its communications Inc. (the former Tokyu Cable Television Co., Ltd. which changed its company
 name in August), a CATV service firm, reflecting popularization of the Internet.
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REVENUES (¥ Billions) OPERATING INCOME (¥ Billions)

REVENUES (¥ Billions) OPERATING INCOME (¥ Billions)

Net Other Expenses

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       Yen (millions)

Years ended March 31,                                                                                                                                                                   1999                     2000                      2001

Interest and dividends (net)                                                                                                                           ¥(31,790)         ¥(36,300)          ¥(36,330)
Equity in losses of affiliates                                                                                                                                 (3,374)              (1,789)               (8,300)
Amortization of difference arising from change of accounting standards                                                  —                      —            (69,546)
Other (net)                                                                                                                                                              (28,326)           (16,495)               24,813

Total                                                                                                                                                                        ¥(63,490)         ¥(54,584)          ¥(89,363)

 Net other expenses increased ¥34,779 million to ¥89,363 million (US$715 million).
 Interest and dividend income (net) was largely unchanged from the previous fiscal year. Equity in losses of affiliates showed a deficit
 of ¥8,300 million (US$66 million) as equity in the losses of affiliates deteriorated by ¥6,511 million from a largely stable expense of 
¥1,789 million in the previous fiscal year. This increase largely reflects losses incurred in the reorganization and liquidation of affiliates
 at group firms. The Company amortized the unrecognized transition obligation amounting to ¥69,546 million (US$556 million) 
because of the new Japanese Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits. The “Other” item in other income/expense (net) saw an 
improvement of ¥41,308 million and was ¥24,813 million (US$199 million) in the black. This is due mainly to sharp reduction from last
 year’s massive loss on revaluation of real estate for sale.

Construction: Revenue from operations was ¥348,920 million (US$2,791 million), down 6.4 percent from a year earlier.
 Divisional revenue fall due to a sharp plunge in public sector construction orders at Tokyu Construction Co., Ltd. which represents 
the bulk of divisional revenues, in spite of strong private sector orders. Operating income was ¥14,714 million (US$118 million), down
 1.6 percent from a year earlier.

Other: Revenue from operations increased 5.0% from the previous fiscal year to ¥14,152 million (US$113 million). The primary factor 
behind the revenue growth was concerted efforts at Toyoko Industry Co., a rolling stock maintenance service subsidiary, to boost 
revenue despite an adverse business environment. Completion of a major long-term construction project and renovation work to 
make railway coaches barrier-free underpinned revenue growth at the company. However, operating income fell 21.3% to ¥1,502 
million (US$12 million), reflecting the operating loss reported by Izukyu Corporation.
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II. Capitalization, Financing And Liquidity
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       Yen (millions)

March 31,                                                                                                                                                                                            1999                     2000                      2001

Short-term:
 Loans, principally from banks                                                                                                                    ¥518,170           ¥505,422         ¥473,964
 Commercial paper                                                                                                                                              20,000                24,000                        —

Long-term including current portion:
 Loans, principally from banks                                                                                                                       598,731              643,569            671,912
 Notes and bonds                                                                                                                                               301,840              363,840            361,041
 Others                                                                                                                                                                     12,717                  9,225                 5,571

Total                                                                                                                                                                         ¥913,288        ¥1,016,634     ¥1,038,524
 
 Total assets as of March 31, 2001 stood at ¥2,499,886 million (US$19,999 million), down ¥10,861 million year on year.
 The decline in total assets is largely due to two factors. First is the ¥13,037 million decline resulting from the transfer of foreign 
currency translation adjustment account to the shareholders’ equity section to conform to the revised foreign currency translation 
standards. Second is the ¥37,561 million increase in accumulated deficit, due mainly to the net loss in the current fiscal year.
 Cash and cash equivalents were ¥124,328 million (US$995 million), down from ¥137,589 million at the end of the previous fiscal year.
    Primary factors affecting the decline in cash and cash equivalents were a net ¥66,953 million decline in cash flow from financing 
activities to ¥42,910 million. Although decline in advances on construction contracts following the completion of a major construction
 project in fiscal 2000 caused cash flow from operating activities to decline by ¥24,977 million, cash used in investment activities also
 declined, reflecting a slowdown in acquisition of fixed assets and increases in receipt of charge for construction projects. As a result, 
free cash flow stood at ¥25,796 million (US$206 million) largely unchanged from the previous fiscal year.
 Working capital deteriorated from minus ¥325,631 million to a negative figure of $438,812 million (US$3,510 million).
 Short-term fund procurement activities center on bank loans. The ¥24,000 million commercial paper outstanding from the previous
 fiscal year was redeemed completely in current fiscal year.
 In regard to long-term fund procurement, the balance of long-term debt, including the current portion, stood at ¥1,038,524 million
 (US$8,308 million) as of March 31, 2001. Of this amount, ¥361,041 million (US$2,888 million) was procured from capital markets through
 corporate bonds. A substantial portion of long-term funds was used for capital expenditures.

III. Selected Financial Data
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                              Yen (millions)                                                                 (thousands)

March 31,                                                                                            1997                      1998                     1999                     2000                     2001                      2001

Results for the year:
Revenue from operations                                              ¥498,747          ¥484,832         ¥573,424          ¥995,228    ¥1,012,890       $8,103,120
Operating income                                                                 62,053               55,243              48,965               60,417             64,374              514,992
Income (loss) before income taxes 
 and minority interests in loss of 
 consolidated subsidiaries                                                 36,291               10,082            (14,525)                 5,833           (24,989)           (199,912)
Net income (loss)                                                                   30,752                 2,184            (27,900)                 1,765           (30,164)           (241,312)
Depreciation                                                                            42,075               45,252              52,008               50,908             56,185              449,480

Net income and depreciation                                            72,827               47,436              24,108               52,673             26,021              208,168

Amounts per share (in yen and dollars):
Net income (loss)                                                                   ¥28.00                 ¥1.99             ¥(25.85)                ¥1.62            ¥(27.50)                 $(0.22)
Cash dividends (actual)                                                            5.00                   5.00                    5.00                  5.00                  5.00                      0.04

Year-end financial position:
Long-term debt
(including current portion)                                            ¥782,549          ¥817,949         ¥913,288      ¥1,016,634    ¥1,038,524       $8,308,192
Shareholders’ equity                                                          248,890             239,778            176,314            158,859           139,067          1,112,536
Total assets                                                                         1,590,892         1,717,547        2,360,427         2,510,747       2,499,886       19,999,088 
Notes: (1)  This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained elsewhere in this annual report.
             (2)  The accompanying U.S. dollar figures throughout this report have been converted from Japanese yen for convenience, and as a matter of 

arithmetical computation only, at the rate of ¥125 to $1.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
TOKYU CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
31st March, 2000 and 2001

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

ASSETS                                                                                                                                                      2000                         2001                          2001

Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                         ¥ 137,589               ¥ 124,328                 $ 994,624

 Securities (Notes 3 and 5)                                                                                                                 73,935                            245                           1,960

 Trade notes and accounts receivable                                                                                         175,850                   178,596                 1,428,768

 Allowance for doubtful accounts                                                                                                   (3,577)                      (6,073)                     (48,584)

 Inventories (Notes 4 and 5)                                                                                                            369,296                   353,162                 2,825,296

 Deferred tax—current (Note 10)                                                                                                      4,260                        5,806                        46,448

 Prepaid expenses and other current assets                                                                                59,421                      63,425                     507,400

   Total current assets                                                                                                                 816,774                   719,489                 5,755,912

Investments and long-term loans:
 Investments in:

  Non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates (Notes 3 and 5)                                          85,197                      83,574                     668,592

  Other securities                                                                                                                               31,091                      96,339                     770,712

 Long-term loans principally to affiliates                                                                                        3,105                        3,119                        24,952

 Deferred tax—non-current (Note 10)                                                                                           14,101                      28,354                     226,832

 Other investments                                                                                                                              85,996                      81,989                     655,912

 Allowance for doubtful accounts                                                                                                (11,409)                    (13,721)                  (109,768)

  Total investments and long-term loans                                                                                208,081                   279,654                 2,237,232

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Property and equipment (Note 5):
 Land                                                                                                                                                       431,497                   419,698                 3,357,584

 Buildings and structures                                                                                                                 927,306                   968,841                 7,750,728

 Rolling stock and machinery                                                                                                         311,163                   345,315                 2,762,520

 Construction in progress                                                                                                                395,600                   393,932                 3,151,456

                                                                                                                                                                 2,065,566               2,127,786              17,022,288

 Less accumulated depreciation                                                                                                 (622,859)                 (673,845)              (5,390,760)

   Net property and equipment                                                                                          1,442,707               1,453,941              11,631,528

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Consolidation adjusting account                                                                                                     4,673                        7,442                        59,536

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Other assets                                                                                                                                            38,512                      39,360                     314,880

                                                                                                                                                               ¥2,510,747             ¥2,499,886            $19,999,088

See the accompanying “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTERESTS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY                                  2000                         2001                          2001

Current liabilities:
 Short-term debt (Note 5)                                                                                                            ¥ 529,422               ¥ 473,964             $ 3,791,712

 Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5)                                                                             116,086                   159,781                 1,278,248

 Trade notes and accounts payable                                                                                              187,052                   186,805                 1,494,440

 Accrued expenses                                                                                                                               20,889                      23,214                     185,712

 Accrued income taxes                                                                                                                         3,847                      25,473                     203,784

 Advances received                                                                                                                            208,461                   202,527                 1,620,216

 Employees’ savings deposits                                                                                                             7,347                               —                                  —

 Other current liabilities                                                                                                                     69,301                      86,537                     692,296

   Total current liabilities                                                                                                        1,142,405               1,158,301                 9,266,408

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Long-term debt (Note 5)                                                                                                                   900,548                   878,743                 7,029,944

Deposits from tenants and golfers (Note 6)                                                                          156,455                   147,383                 1,179,064

Other non-current liabilities                                                                                                           13,435                      12,550                     100,400

Retirement and severance benefits (Note18)                                                                         41,274                      79,302                     634,416

Reserve for losses incurred in real estate development projects                                9,000                        6,238                        49,904

Deferred tax liabilities from revaluation of land (Notes 10 and 17)                             7,496                        7,466                        59,728

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 10)                                                                                                  10,001                      10,638                        85,104

The Urban Railways Improvement Reserve (Note 7)                                                          49,837                      46,769                     374,152

   Total liabilities                                                                                                                       2,330,451               2,347,390              18,779,120

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Minority interests                                                                                                                                21,437                      13,429                     107,432

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Shareholders’ equity (Note 8):
 Common stock of ¥50 par value:

  Authorized —1,800,000 thousand shares

  Issued         —1,098,348 thousand shares                                                                            107,543                   107,543                     860,344

 Capital surplus                                                                                                                                   106,223                   106,223                     849,784

 Foreign currency translation adjustment account                                                                (17,606)                    (13,037)                  (104,296)

 Revaluation balance (Note17)                                                                                                           3,520                        9,291                        74,328

 Unrealized holding gains on securities                                                                                                —                        6,680                        53,440

 Retained earnings (Accumulated deficit)                                                                                 (40,013)                    (77,574)                  (620,592)

                                                                                                                                                                     159,667                   139,126                 1,113,008

Less cost of common shares of treasury stock                                                                                  (808)                             (59)                            (472)

   Net shareholders’ equity                                                                                                       158,859                   139,067                 1,112,536

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Contingent liabilities (Note 12)

                                                                                                                                                               ¥2,510,747             ¥2,499,886            $19,999,088
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Consolidated Statements of Income
TOKYU CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Years ended 31st March, 2000 and 2001

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Revenue from operations                                                                                                         ¥995,228                ¥1,012,890             $8,103,120

Cost of revenue from operations                                                                                            934,811                      948,516                7,588,128

 Operating income                                                                                                                             60,417                         64,374                    514,992

Other income:
 Interest and dividends                                                                                                                       2,640                           2,543                      20,344

 Other                                                                                                                                                     52,445                         56,542                    452,336

                                                                                                                                                                     55,085                         59,085                    472,680

Other expenses:
 Interest                                                                                                                                                 38,940                         38,873                    310,984

 Equity in losses of affiliates                                                                                                              1,789                           8,300                      66,400

 Amortization of difference arising from adoption of retirement 

  benefit accounting                                                                                                                                 —                         69,546                    556,368

 Other                                                                                                                                                     68,940                         31,729                    253,832

                                                                                                                                                                  109,669                      148,448                1,187,584

  Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests in losses of 

   consolidated subsidiaries                                                                                                          5,833                      (24,989)                (199,912)

Income taxes (Note 10):
 Current                                                                                                                                                   9,587                         29,659                    237,272

 Deferred                                                                                                                                              (2,480)                      (19,530)                (156,240)

                                                                                                                                                                       7,107                         10,129                      81,032

  Loss before minority interests in losses of 

   consolidated subsidiaries                                                                                                       (1,274)                      (35,118)                (280,944)

Minority interests in losses of consolidated subsidiaries                                              3,039                           4,954                      39,632

  Net income (loss)                                                                                                                         ¥ 1,765                  ¥ (30,164)             $ (241,312)

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                             Yen                                                     (Note 2)

Net income (loss) per share of common stock (Note 1 (m))                                                      ¥ 1.62                      ¥ (27.50)                    $ (0.22)

See the accompanying “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
TOKYU CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Years ended 31st March, 2000 and 2001

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Common stock:
 Balance at beginning of year                                                                                                    ¥107,543                 ¥107,543                $ 860,344

 Balance at end of year                                                                                                                ¥107,543                 ¥107,543                $ 860,344

Capital surplus:
 Balance at beginning of year                                                                                                    ¥106,223                 ¥106,223                $ 849,784

 Balance at end of year                                                                                                                ¥106,223                 ¥106,223                $ 849,784

Revaluation balance:
 Balance at beginning of year                                                                                                        ¥      —                     ¥ 3,520                   $ 28,160

 Addition                                                                                                                                                 3,520                         5,771                       46,168

 Balance at end of year                                                                                                                    ¥ 3,520                     ¥ 9,291                   $ 74,328

Retained earnings (Accumulated deficit):
 Balance at beginning of year                                                                                                   ¥ (31,544)                ¥ (40,013)               $(320,104)

 Cumulative effect of prior years’ deferred taxation resulting 

  from the initial application of deferred tax accounting                                                    (7,625)                                —                                 —

 Net income (loss)                                                                                                                                 1,765                   (30,164)                 (241,312)

 Effect on opening retained earnings (accumulated deficit) due to:

  Change in consolidated subsidiaries                                                                                       1,966                             207                          1,656

  Change in affiliated companies subject to equity accounting                                        3,247                          (582)                       (4,656)

 Cash dividends                                                                                                                                  (5,492)                      (5,492)                    (43,936)

 Revaluation by affiliated companies subject to equity accounting                                (2,156)                                —                                 —

 Reversal of revaluation balance                                                                                                           —                      (1,372)                    (10,976)

 Directors’ and statutory auditors’ bonuses                                                                                  (174)                          (158)                       (1,264)

 Balance at end of year                                                                                                               ¥ (40,013)                ¥ (77,574)               $(620,592)

See the accompanying “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
 Net income (loss)                                                                                                                             ¥  1,765               ¥ (30,164)               $ (241,312)
 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided 
  by operating activities:
  Depreciation                                                                                                                                  50,908                      56,185                      449,480
  Provision for deferred tax                                                                                                             7,107                      10,129                        81,032
  Provision for the Urban Railways Improvement Reserve                                                (3,117)                     (3,068)                     (24,544)
  Write-down of real estate inventories                                                                                   31,242                        4,193                       33,544
  Retirement and severance benefits                                                                                                 —                      57,333                     458,664
  Other non-cash items                                                                                                                    1,344                     (7,168)                     (57,344)
 Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
  Trade receivables                                                                                                                          23,950                        9,350                       74,800
  Inventories                                                                                                                                      36,739                      33,080                     264,640
  Trade payables                                                                                                                            (17,432)                        1,362                       10,896
  Advances received                                                                                                                       14,929                   (24,386)                  (195,088)
  Deposits from tenants and golfers                                                                                       (12,859)                     (7,516)                     (60,128)
 Other, net                                                                                                                                           (20,382)                   (10,113)                     (80,904)

   Net cash provided by operating activities                                                                 ¥ 114,194                 ¥ 89,217                  $ 713,736

Cash flows from investing activities:
 Purchases of property and equipment                                                                               ¥(148,599)             ¥(107,327)               $ (858,616)
 Proceeds from sale of property and equipment                                                                     41,383                      31,747                      253,976
 Changes in securities and investment securities                                                                    22,164                     (8,779)                     (70,232)
 Changes in investments and long-term loans                                                                            8,409                            861                          6,888
 Receipt of charges for construction projects                                                                              1,104                      24,128                     193,024
 Purchase of investments by addition of consolidated subsidiaries                                (11,010)                     (8,063)                     (64,504)
 Proceeds from sale of investments by deduction 
  of consolidated subsidiaries                                                                                                                 —                            870                           6,960
 Other                                                                                                                                                              —                        3,142                       25,136

   Net cash used in investing activities                                                                           ¥ (86,549)               ¥ (63,421)               $ (507,368)

Cash flows from financing activities:
 Proceeds from notes                                                                                                                     ¥ 51,967                 ¥ 20,617                  $ 164,936
 Redemption of notes                                                                                                                     (35,590)                   (23,500)                  (188,000)
 Changes in short-term and long-term borrowings                                                                  1,986                   (14,964)                  (119,712)
 Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper                                                                         35,000                      14,000                     112,000
 Redemption of commercial paper                                                                                            (31,000)                   (38,000)                  (304,000)
 Cash dividends paid                                                                                                                         (5,572)                     (5,556)                     (44,448)
 Gain on sale of treasury stock                                                                                                          7,275                        1,101                          8,808
 Other                                                                                                                                                           (23)                        3,392                       27,136

   Net cash provided by financing activities                                                                     ¥ 24,043               ¥ (42,910)               $ (343,280)

Translation difference in cash and cash equivalents                                                                  (2,397)                        3,897                       31,176

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                                                                                    49,291                   (13,217)                  (105,736)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                                                                         70,405                   137,589                 1,100,712
Increase due to inclusion in consolidation                                                                                    17,893                               —                                 —
Decrease due to exclusion from consolidation                                                                                     —                            (44)                            (352)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                                                                                ¥ 137,589               ¥ 124,328                  $ 994,624

See the accompanying “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
TOKYU CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Years ended 31st March, 2000 and 2001
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
TOKYU CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts maintained by the Companies in 
accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Commercial Code and in conformity with accounting principles and practices
 generally accepted in Japan, which may differ in some material respects from accounting principles and practices generally accepted
 in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan.
 In addition, the notes to consolidated financial statements include information which is not required under accounting principles 
generally accepted in Japan but is presented herein as additional information.

(b) Consolidation Policy

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all its subsidiaries (together, the “Companies ”). All 
significant intercompany accounts, intercompany transactions and unrealized profits have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments
 in significant affiliates are accounted for by the equity method.
 Until the year ended 31st March, 1999, the consolidated financial statements included the accounts of the Company and its significant
 subsidiaries (owned more than 50%), and investments in certain unconsolidated subsidiaries and significant affiliates (owned 20% to
 50%) were accounted for by the equity method.
 From the fiscal year ended 31st March, 2000, the classification of a company as either a subsidiary or affiliate was determined based
 on the concept of control, not share ownership, due to an amendment of Japanese accounting standards.
 Also, this amendment required that all assets and liabilities belonging to consolidated subsidiaries be valued at current prices.
 The excess of acquisition cost over the underlying net assets at the date of investment in subsidiaries is being amortized over a
 5-year period.

(c) Recognition of Revenue

Revenue from sales of land and residential housing in the real estate business is recognized when units are delivered and accepted
 by customers.

(d) Cash Equivalents

The Companies consider all highly liquid securities with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

(e) Securities

Bonds held-to-maturity are amortized or accumulated based on their face value. “Other securities” (by which means those other than
 trading, held-to-maturity, subsidiaries and affiliates) with a market value are carried at market value. The difference between 
acquisition cost and book value of “Other securities” is recognized in “Unrealized holding gains on securities” irrespective of whether 
unrealized gains or losses have been incurred. The cost of “Other securities” sold is principally computed based on the moving average
 method.
 Until the year ended 31st March, 2000, listed securities had been valued principally at the lower of cost or market, cost being 
determined by the moving average method, and securities other than listed securities had been stated at cost determined by the 
moving average method.
 Effective 1st April, 2000, financial instruments are accounted for by a method prescribed by statements issued by the Business 
Accounting Deliberation Council (BADC) of Japan (22nd January, 1999: Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments). The method 
of valuing securities and golf memberships and the method of appropriation to the reserve for doubtful accounts were changed. As a
 result, net loss before income taxes increased ¥3,681 million (US$29,448 thousand) in the fiscal year ended 31st March, 2001 as 
compared with the amounts that would have been reported if the previous methods had been applied consistently.
 In addition, the purpose of investments in securities held at the beginning of the period was reviewed. Bonds with maturities of less
 than 1 year included in bonds held-to-maturity and in the “Other securities” account were reclassified into the securities account in the
 current assets section. Other securities are classified as investment securities. As a result of the above, securities in the current assets 
section declined ¥73,248 million (US$585,984 thousand) and investment securities increased by the equivalent amount.

(f) Inventories

Residential land lots and buildings are valued at cost, with cost being determined by the weighted average (for the region) method 
and the specific identification method. Other inventories are valued at cost, which is determined by one of the specific identification 
method, the weighted average method or the last cost method.
 Cost does not include interest expenses incurred during or after the development of real estate.
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(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost except for land which is revalued. Depreciation is principally computed by the 
declining-balance method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets according to general class, type of construction and use.
 Repairs and maintenances which do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are expensed.

(h) Leases

Non-cancelable lease transactions are primarily accounted for as operating leases (whether such leases are termed operating or 
finance leases) except for lease agreements which stipulate the transfer of ownership of the leased assets to the lessee which are 
accounted for as finance leases.

(i) Income Taxes

The Companies record income taxes currently payable based upon the determination of taxable income.
 Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting
 purposes and such amounts recognized for tax purposes. These deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax laws.

(j) Reserve for Losses Incurred in Real Estate Development Projects

To cover expected losses in the real estate development business of affiliates of the Company, a reserve for losses incurred in real 
estate development projects was created.

(k) Retirement and Severance Benefits

Until the year ended 31st March, 2000, accrued retirement benefits were stated at 40% of the amount which would be required to be
 paid if all employees covered by the un-funded pension plans voluntarily terminated their employment at the balance sheet date. The
 Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have funded tax-qualified pension plans. Installments contributed to plan assets are 
accounted for as costs when contributed. Prior service cost is being funded and expensed over a period of approximately 14 to 20 years.
     Effective from the year ended 31st March, 2001, the Company adopted the new accounting standard for retirement benefits (“Opinion
 Concerning Establishment of Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefit”, the Business Accounting Deliberation Council, 16th June, 
1998). In accordance with this standard, accrued retirement benefits for employees are provided based on the estimated retirement 
benefit obligation and pension assets.
 The retirement benefit obligation is attributed to each period by the straight-line method over the estimated years of service of the 
eligible employees. The whole amount of transition difference arising from adoption of new standard was amortized in the current fiscal year.
     Actuarial gain and loss are amortized by the straight-line method over average remaining years of service of the employees as incurred.
     As a result, retirement benefit expense declined ¥4,535 million (US$36,280 thousand), operating income increased by the equivalent
 amount, and net loss before income taxes increased ¥65,010 million (US$520,080 thousand), as compared with the amounts that 
would have been reported if the previous method had been applied consistently.
 The un-funded prior period retirement benefit reserve and corporate pension fund reserve liabilities are included in the reserve for
 retirement and severance benefits.
 While some of the Companies have no legal obligation, it is customary practice in Japan to make lump-sum payments to directors or
 statutory auditors upon retirement with the approval of shareholders at the annual shareholders’ meeting. According to established 
guidelines in 1999, the amount of such allowance is computed based upon payment factors determined by position and length of 
service as director or statutory auditor. Amounts payable under the plan have been provided as un-funded retirement allowances, the
 balance of which at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 was ¥3,725 million and ¥3,555 million (US$28,440 thousand), respectively.

(l) Foreign Exchange

All foreign currency denominated credits and debits are translated into yen amounts at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance
 sheet date, and translation gains or losses are accounted for in the Statements of Income. Assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries
 are translated into yen amounts at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated into
 yen amounts at the average exchange rate for the fiscal year and the differences are included in the foreign currency translation 
adjustment account in the shareholders’ equity section and the minority interest account.
 Effective 1st April, 2000, the translation into Japanese yen of foreign currency denominated transactions is made by the method 
prescribed by the statements issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council (BADC) of Japan (22nd October, 1999: Revision 
of Standards for Foreign Currency Denominated Transactions). As a result, net loss before income taxes for the year ended 31st March,
 2001 was reduced by ¥88 million (US$704 thousand).

(m) Net Income per Share

The computation of net income per share of common stock is based upon the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
 each year.

(n) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have entered into various derivative transactions in order to manage certain risks
 arising from adverse fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and stock prices. In accordance with a new 
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2. Basis of Translating Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements presented herein are expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of readers, have been 
translated into United States dollars at the rate of ¥125=U.S.$1. This translation should not be construed as a representation that any of
 the amounts shown could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

accounting standard for financial instruments which became effective 1st April, 2000, derivative financial instruments are carried at fair
 value with changes in unrealized gain or loss charged or credited to operations, except for those which meet the criteria for deferral 
hedge accounting under which the unrealized gain or loss is deferred as an asset or a liability. Receivables and payables hedged by 
qualified forward foreign exchange contracts are translated at the corresponding foreign exchange contract rates.

(o) Accounting Changes

Until the interim period ended September 2000, the Company accounted for revenue from the media business as other income. In 
accounting for sales of cellular phones, the amount obtained after offsetting costs against revenues was stated in other income. 
Effective this term, revenue from the media business is included in operating revenue. In accounting for revenue from cellular phones,
 revenue, net of cost, is stated in other income. As a result of this change, revenue increased ¥4,420 million (US$35,360 thousand), 
operating income declined ¥353 million (US$2,824 thousand), and other income declined ¥1,176 million (US$9,408 thousand), as 
compared with the amounts that would have been reported if the previous method had been applied consistently.
 The change reflects our focus on the cellular phone business in our media business strategy. The Company has set up a strategic 
business promotion division and is expanding the network of media business offices. The reclassification of the income statements reflects
 our understanding that revenue from the said business should be reported to reflect the business activities which have been adopted.
 The above mentioned business network started operating in the second half of the fiscal year, and therefore revenue and income 
from the media business were reported in the interim business results in accordance with the previous methods.

3. Securities

Prior Fiscal Year (As of 31st March, 2000)

Certain information in respect of the current and non-current portfolio of marketable securities included in marketable securities and
 investments, respectively, is summarized as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Yen (millions)

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            2000

Current portfolio:
 Cost                                                                                                                                                                                                                             ¥73,553
 Market                                                                                                                                                                                                                          89,244
 Net unrealized gains                                                                                                                                                                                               15,691
                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
Non-current portfolio:
 Cost                                                                                                                                                                                                                             ¥66,812
 Market                                                                                                                                                                                                                          69,932
 Net unrealized gains                                                                                                                                                                                                 3,120
 Current Fiscal Year (As of 31st March, 2001)

(1) Bonds held to maturity (with market quotations)

                                                                                                                                                                                                              Yen (millions)

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Unrealized
                                                                                                                                                 Instrument                                     Book value                  Market value                  gain or loss

                                                                                                         (1) JGB, Municipal bonds                        ¥ 673                         ¥ 721                         ¥ 48
Securities with valuation gains                                             (2) Corporate bonds                                      23                              27                               4
                                                                                                         (3) Others                                                       170                            173                               3

                                                                                                         Subtotal                                                       ¥ 866                         ¥ 921                         ¥ 55

                                                                                                         (1) JGB, Municipal bonds                              12                              11                             (1)
Securities with no valuation gains                                       (2) Corporate bonds                                   100                              90                          (10)
                                                                                                         (3) Others                                                          50                              48                             (2)

                                                                                                         Subtotal                                                       ¥ 162                         ¥ 149                        ¥(13)

Total                                                                                                                                                                     ¥1,028                      ¥1,070                         ¥ 42
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                                                                                                                                                                                                     U.S. dollars (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Unrealized
                                                                                                                                                 Instrument                                     Book value                  Market value                  gain or loss

                                                                                                         (1) JGB, Municipal bonds                     $5,384                      $5,768                       $ 384
Securities with valuation gains                                             (2) Corporate bonds                                   184                            216                             32
                                                                                                         (3) Others                                                    1,360                        1,384                             24

                                                                                                         Subtotal                                                    $6,928                      $7,368                       $ 440

                                                                                                         (1) JGB, Municipal bonds                              96                              88                             (8)
Securities with no valuation gains                                       (2) Corporate bonds                                   800                            720                          (80)
                                                                                                         (3) Others                                                       400                            384                          (16)

                                                                                                         Subtotal                                                    $1,296                      $1,192                      $(104)

Total                                                                                                                                                                     $8,224                      $8,560                       $ 336

 (2) Other securities (with market quotations)

                                                                                                                                                                                                              Yen (millions)

                                                                                                                                                                                                           Acquisition                                                              Unrealized
                                                                                                                                                 Instrument                                           cost                           Book value                    gain or loss

                                                                                                        (1) Stocks                                                ¥33,197                    ¥45,939                  ¥12,742
                                                                                                         (2) Bonds
Securities whose book value exceeds                                       JGB, Municipal Bonds                           995                            999                               4 
their acquisition cost                                                                      Corporate bonds                                      15                              15                               0
                                                                                                               Others                                                          —                              —                             —
                                                                                                         (3) Other securities                                      200                            203                               3

                                                                                                         Subtotal                                                  ¥34,407                    ¥47,156                  ¥12,749 

                                                                                                         (1) Stocks                                                  18,973                      17,178                     (1,795)
                                                                                                         (2) Bonds
Securities whose book value does not exceed                      JGB, Municipal Bonds                              —                              —                             —
their acquisition cost                                                                      Corporate bonds                                      —                              —                             —
                                                                                                               Others                                                          —                              —                             —
                                                                                                         (3) Other securities                                      111                            100                          (11)

                                                                                                         Subtotal                                                  ¥19,084                    ¥17,278                 ¥ (1,806)

Total                                                                                                                                                                   ¥53,491                    ¥64,434                  ¥10,943

                                                                                                                                                                                                     U.S. dollars (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                                                           Acquisition                                                              Unrealized
                                                                                                                                                 Instrument                                           cost                           Book value                    gain or loss

                                                                                                        (1) Stocks                                              $265,576                 $367,512                $101,936
                                                                                                         (2) Bonds
Securities whose book value exceeds                                       JGB, Municipal Bonds                        7,960                        7,992                             32
their acquisition cost                                                                      Corporate bonds                                   120                            120                               0
                                                                                                               Others                                                          —                              —                             —
                                                                                                         (3) Other securities                                   1,600                        1,624                             24

                                                                                                         Subtotal                                                $275,256                 $377,248                $101,992

                                                                                                         (1) Stocks                                                151,784                    137,424                  (14,360)
                                                                                                         (2) Bonds
Securities whose book value does not exceed                      JGB, Municipal Bonds                              —                              —                             —
their acquisition cost                                                                      Corporate bonds                                      —                              —                             —
                                                                                                               Others                                                          —                              —                             —
                                                                                                         (3) Other securities                                      888                            800                          (88)

                                                                                                         Subtotal                                                $152,672                 $138,224               $ (14,448)

Total                                                                                                                                                                 $427,928                 $515,472                 $ 87,544
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 (3) Other securities sold in current fiscal year

                                                                                                                                                                                                             Yen (millions)

                                                                                                                                         Proceeds from sale                           Total gain on sale                             Total loss on sale

                                                                                                                            ¥3,513                                       ¥1,690                                          ¥311
                                                                                                                                                                                                     U.S. dollars (thousands)

                                                                                                                                         Proceeds from sale                           Total gain on sale                             Total loss on sale

                                                                                                                         $28,104                                    $13,520                                      $2,488
 (4) Securities not valued at market

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       Yen (millions)                    (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          Book value                      Book value

1. Bonds held to maturity
   Matured interest-bearing govt. bonds                                                                                                                  ¥    9                            $   72
2. Other securities
   Unlisted stock (Excluding OTC stocks)                                                                                                               31,114                      248,912
 (5) Maturity schedule of securities with fixed maturities and securities held to maturity (in Other securities)

                                                                                                                                                                                                                            Yen (millions)

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Longer than
                                                                                                                                                         Less than 1 year                  1 to 5 years                  5 to 10 years                       10 years

1.  Bonds
     (1) JGBs and municipal bonds                                                                          ¥175                         ¥1,512                          ¥ 5                              —
     (2) Corporate bonds                                                                                                  —                               138                           —                              —
     (3) Others                                                                                                                   170                               151                           —                              —
2.  Other securities
           Investment trusts                                                                                                 —                                 48                           20                              —

   Total                                                                                                                   ¥345                         ¥1,849                         ¥25                              —

                                                                                                                                                                                                                   U.S. dollars (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Longer than
                                                                                                                                                         Less than 1 year                  1 to 5 years                  5 to 10 years                       10 years

1.  Bonds
     (1) JGBs and municipal bonds                                                                      $1,400                      $12,096                        $ 40                              —
     (2) Corporate bonds                                                                                                  —                           1,104                           —                              —
     (3) Others                                                                                                                1,360                           1,208                           —                              —
2.  Other securities
           Investment trusts                                                                                                 —                               384                         160                              —

   Total                                                                                                               $2,760                      $14,792                      $200                              —

 

4. Inventories

Inventories at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 are summarized as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Real estate business:
 Land for development                                                                                                                ¥239,422                 ¥231,423              $1,851,384
 Residential housing                                                                                                                            4,170                         3,785                        30,280

                                                                                                                                                                  243,592                    235,208                  1,881,664
Materials and supplies                                                                                                                      125,704                    117,954                      943,632

                                                                                                                                                                ¥369,296                 ¥353,162               $2,825,296

  At 31st March, 2000 and 2001 costs did not exceed market value.



28

5. Short-Term Debt and Long-Term Debt

Short-term debt at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 is summarized as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Bank loans, interest 0.42 percent to 11.00 percent  
 (2000: 0.404 percent  to 15.00 percent )                                                                                  ¥505,422                 ¥473,964               $3,791,712
Commercial Paper, interest 0.195 percent to 0.204 percent                                                    24,000                                —                                  —

                                                                                                                                                                ¥529,422                 ¥473,964               $3,791,712

 Long-term debt at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 is summarized as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

1.8 percent  Convertible Bonds, maturing 2002                                                                        ¥ 14,640                   ¥ 14,640                $ 117,120
Floating Rate Notes, due 2000–2011                                                                                                 12,800                       17,001                    136,008
USD Reverse Dual Currency Note due 2009–2011                                                                         3,000                         4,000                      32,000
0.98 percent  to 6.25 percent  Notes due 2000–2019                                                               320,000                    319,500                2,556,000
1.7 percent  to 4.40 percent  Mortgage Bonds, Maturing 2000–2006                                    13,400                         5,900                      47,200
Loans, from Japanese banks and insurance companies Maturing 2000–2023, 
 interest 0.642 percent  to 8.50 percent 
 (2000: 0.67857 percent to 7.188 percent )
 Secured                                                                                                                                               416,145                    387,216                3,097,728
 Unsecured                                                                                                                                          227,424                    284,696                2,277,568
Secured loan from Japan Railway Construction Public Corporation, 
 interest 5.1 percent, Maturing in installments through 2006                                                   9,225                         5,571                      44,568

                                                                                                                                                                1,016,634                1,038,524                8,308,192
Less current portion                                                                                                                             116,086                    159,781                1,278,248

                                                                                                                                                                 ¥ 900,548                ¥ 878,743             $7,029,944

  The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt after 2002 are as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
Year ending 31st March,                                                                                                                                                                                         Yen (millions)                   (thousands)

2003                                                                                                                                                                                          ¥147,261                  $1,178,088
2004                                                                                                                                                                                            137,503                    1,100,024
2005                                                                                                                                                                                            114,688                       917,504
2006                                                                                                                                                                                            105,142                       841,136
2007 and thereafter                                                                                                                                                               374,149                    2,993,192

                                                                                                                                                                                                    ¥878,743                  $7,029,944

 The following assets are provided as security for loans payable and guarantee of obligations of ¥484,583 million and ¥472,574 
million (US$3,780,592 thousand) at 31st March, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Property and equipment, at net book value:
 Railway property                                                                                                                          ¥281,259                 ¥311,789               $2,494,312
 Other property                                                                                                                                335,369                    387,974                  3,103,792
Securities                                                                                                                                                  14,116                       14,971                      119,768
Inventories                                                                                                                                               13,880                       12,599                      100,792

                                                                                                                                                                ¥644,624                 ¥727,333               $5,818,664
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  As is customary in Japan, additional security must be given if requested by lending institutions under certain circumstances, and 
generally banks have the right to offset cash deposited with them against any debts or obligations that become due, and, in case of 
default and certain other specified events, against all other debts payable to the bank.
 In accordance with customary business practices in Japan, substantial deposit balances (generally in the form of time deposits) are
 maintained with banks from which the Company has borrowings. Withdrawal of such deposits is not legally restricted. 
 For the holders of the 1.8 percent Convertible Bonds, the Company has agreed not to provide assets as security for other domestic
 bonds, unless the existing bondholders participate equally in such security. In the indenture of the bonds, the Company has agreed 
that the aggregate amount of payments of cash dividends may not exceed ¥6,000 million plus the aggregate amount of net income of
 the Company from the year ended 31st March, 1988.
 All convertible bonds at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 were convertible, at current conversion price, into approximately 7,559 thousand
 shares of common stock.
 The conversion price at 31st March, 2001 is as follow:
                                                                                                                                                                                                                              Conversion price (Yen)

1.8 percent Convertible Bonds, maturing 2002                                                                                                                                             ¥1,943.50

 The conversion and subscription prices are subject to change in case of certain events including stock splits and the issue of common
 stock at less than market price.

6. Deposits from Tenants and Golfers

Deposits from tenants and golfers at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 are summarized as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Deposits from tenants of leased property                                                                                 ¥ 81,953                   ¥ 71,325                  $ 570,600
Deposits from members of golf clubs                                                                                             74,502                       76,058                      608,464

                                                                                                                                                                ¥156,455                 ¥147,383               $1,179,064

  The Company has received guarantee and lease deposits from tenants of leased property according to lease agreements. These 
guarantee deposits are refundable to the tenants generally in 10 equal annual installments commencing in the 11th year, and lease 
deposits are refundable when contracts are cancelled. Deposits from members of golf clubs are refundable to the members at the date
 of retirement from the golf clubs.

7. The Urban Railways Improvement Reserve

In connection with the enactment of the Law for the Urban Railways Improvement Reserve in April 1986, the Company is required to
 provide for a reserve for the cost of specific construction projects which are aimed at strengthening railway transport capacity, in an 
amount equivalent to 10 percent (increased from 5 percent since 1st September, 1995) of passenger fares following the increase made
 in 1988. The provision for the reserve made in accordance with the law is deductible for tax purposes and the reserve must be 
reversed into income ten years after the provision or upon completion of the relevant construction projects, whichever comes earlier.

8. Shareholders’ Equity

Under the Commercial Code, the Company shall set aside as a legal reserve at least 10 percent of the amount to be disbursed as 
distribution of retained earnings until such legal reserve equals 25 percent of stated capital. This reserve is not available for dividends
 but may be used to reduce a deficit or may be transferred to stated capital.
 Cash dividends and appropriations to the legal reserve charged to retained earnings during the years ended 31st March, 2000 and
 2001 represent dividends paid out during such years and the related appropriations to the legal reserve.
 The accompanying financial statements do not include any provision for the dividends of ¥2.50 (US$0.02) per share totalling ¥2,746
 million (US$21,968 thousand) and bonuses for directors and statutory auditors totalling ¥93 million (US$744 thousand) declared in 
June 2001 nor for the related appropriation to the legal reserve amounting to ¥284 million (US$2,272 thousand).

9. Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs included in selling, general and administrative expenses and manufacturing costs for the year ended
 31st March, 2000 and 2001 amounted to ¥957 million and ¥990 million (US$7,920 thousand), respectively.

10. Income Taxes

The Companies are subject to a number of taxes based on income, which in aggregate resulted in a normal tax rate of approximately
 42 percent in 2000 and 2001, respectively.
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 The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 
31st March, 2000 and 2001 are as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Deferred tax assets:
 Net operating loss carryforwards                                                                                            ¥ 44,350                   ¥ 47,330                  $ 378,640
 Retirement and severance benefits                                                                                              7,505                       34,418                      275,344
 Allowance for doubtful accounts                                                                                                 12,125                       13,808                      110,464
 Land and residential housing                                                                                                       18,416                       13,268                      106,144
 Securities                                                                                                                                               3,642                       13,009                      104,072
 Unrealized intercompany gains                                                                                                     9,650                         8,296                        66,368
 Construction inventories                                                                                                                11,208                         5,860                        46,880
 Reserve for losses incurred in real estate development projects                                        3,789                         2,626                        21,008
 Accrued bonuses to employees                                                                                                     1,937                         2,585                        20,680
 Accrued business tax deductible in income taxes                                                                       412                         2,421                        19,368
 Property and equipment                                                                                                                      635                             438                           3,504
 Other                                                                                                                                                       2,859                         3,536                        28,288

   Gross deferred tax assets                                                                                                   116,528                    147,595                  1,180,760
   Less: Valuation allowances                                                                                                 (85,019)                    (99,131)                  (793,048)

   Total deferred tax assets                                                                                                    ¥ 31,509                   ¥ 48,464                  $ 387,712

Deferred tax liabilities:
 Gains from revaluation of fixed assets                                                                                   ¥ (9,946)                  ¥ (9,448)                 $ (75,584)
 Advance received                                                                                                                           (11,937)                      (6,336)                     (50,688)
 Unrealized holding gains on securities                                                                                              —                      (4,657)                     (37,256)
 Deferral of gain on sale of fixed assets                                                                                      (1,099)                      (1,165)                        (9,320)
 Other                                                                                                                                                        (166)                      (3,338)                     (26,704)

   Total deferred tax liabilities                                                                                            ¥ (23,148)                ¥ (24,944)               $ (199,552)

   Net deferred tax assets                                                                                                         ¥ 8,361                   ¥ 23,520                  $ 188,160
Deferred tax liabilities from revaluation of land
 Deferred tax liabilities from revaluation of land                                                                 ¥ (7,496)                  ¥ (7,466)                 $ (59,728)

 Deferred tax liabilities amounting to ¥3 million (US$24 thousand) were included in other current liabilities in the consolidated 
balance sheet at 31st March, 2001.
 The effective tax rate for the years ended 31st March, 2000 differed from the normal tax rate for the following reasons:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        (%)

                                                                                                                                                                                                       2000                           2001

Computed normal tax rate                                                                                                                                                     42.1                            —
 Entertainment expenses                                                                                                                                                        8.1                            —
 Dividend income deducted from earnings                                                                                                                   (6.2)                           —
 Valuation allowances                                                                                                                                                           41.6                            —
 Consolidation adjusting account                                                                                                                                     11.3                            —
 Equity in income of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates                                                                         12.9                            —
 Resident income taxes                                                                                                                                                        12.0                            —

Effective tax rate                                                                                                                                                                       121.8                            —

 The difference between the effective tax rate and the normal tax rate for the year ended 31st March 2001 is not presented because of 
the net loss in the year.
 Income tax payments for the years ended 31st March, 2000 and 2001 amounted to ¥17,759 million (US$142,072 thousand) and 
¥8,457 million (US$67,656 thousand), respectively.

11. Leases

All finance lease transactions by the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, other than those deemed to transfer ownership of the
 leased assets to the lessee, are accounted for by a method similar to that applicable to ordinary operating leases.
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(1) Finance lease transactions other than those by which the ownership of leased assets is transferred to the lessee (Lessees).

a. The acquisition cost equivalents, accumulated depreciation equivalents, and balance equivalents of leased assets at the end of period

                                                                                                                         Yen (millions)                                                                                                  U.S. dollars (thousands)

                                                                      2000                                                                2001                                                                   2001
                                                                                                                       Balance                                                                               Balance                                                                                  Balance
                                                   Acquisition      Accumulated      equivalents at      Acquisition       Accumulated      equivalents at       Acquisition       Accumulated      equivalents at
                                                          cost              depreciation          the end of                 cost              depreciation          the end of                  cost               depreciation          the end of
                                                   equivalents        equivalents               period             equivalents       equivalents               period              equivalents         equivalents               period

Machinery & Autos      ¥ 8,016        ¥ 5,002             ¥3,014           ¥ 8,294      ¥ 5,510          ¥ 2,784         $ 66,352      $ 44,080        $22,272
Others                               12,280           7,429               4,851            17,495          9,457              8,038           139,960          75,656           64,304

   Total                  ¥20,296      ¥12,431             ¥7,865          ¥25,789     ¥14,967        ¥10,822        $206,312     $119,736        $86,576

Note: Since outstanding lease commitments (as of the end of the period), as a percentage of tangible fixed assets (as of the end of the term), is small, 
acquisition cost equivalents are computed by the interest-inclusive method.

b. Outstanding lease commitment equivalents

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Within 1 year                                                                                                                                        ¥2,576                       ¥ 3,733                   $29,864
More than 1 year                                                                                                                                   5,289                           7,089                     56,712

   Total                                                                                                                                           ¥7,865                      ¥10,822                   $86,576

 Since outstanding lease commitments (as of the end of the period), as a percentage of tangible fixed assets (as of the end of the 
period), is small outstanding lease commitment equivalents are computed by the interest-inclusive method.

c. Lease rental charge and depreciation equivalents

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Lease rental charge                                                                                                                            ¥3,321                        ¥4,105                   $32,840
Depreciation equivalents                                                                                                                   3,321                           4,105                     32,840

d. Method of calculating depreciation equivalents

Depreciation equivalents are calculated assuming the lease period to be the useful life and residual value to be zero.

(2) Operating leases (Lessees)

Outstanding lease commitment equivalents

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Within 1 year                                                                                                                                       ¥ 2,752                       ¥ 2,394                   $ 19,152
More than 1 year                                                                                                                                 22,629                        22,023                    176,184

   Total                                                                                                                                        ¥25,381                      ¥24,417                 $195,336

(3) Finance leases transactions other than those by which the ownership of leased assets is transferred to lessees (Lessor).

a. The acquisition cost equivalents, accumulated depreciation equivalents, and balance equivalents of leased assets at the end of period

                                                                                                                         Yen (millions)                                                                                                  U.S. dollars (thousands)

                                                                      2000                                                                2001                                                                   2001
                                                                                                                       Balance                                                                               Balance                                                                                  Balance
                                                   Acquisition      Accumulated      equivalents at      Acquisition       Accumulated      equivalents at       Acquisition       Accumulated      equivalents at
                                                          cost              depreciation          the end of                 cost              depreciation          the end of                  cost               depreciation          the end of
                                                   equivalents        equivalents               period             equivalents       equivalents               period              equivalents         equivalents               period

Machinery & Autos          ¥ 36               ¥ 23               ¥ 13                  ¥ 16               ¥ 14                   ¥ 2              $ 128             $ 112                 $ 16
Others                               2,072            1,241                831                9,164            4,697              4,467            73,312           37,576            35,736

   Total                   ¥2,108          ¥1,264              ¥844             ¥9,180          ¥4,711           ¥4,469         $73,440        $37,688         $35,752
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13. Amounts per Share

The computation of basic net income (loss) per share is based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding
 during each year. Diluted net income (loss) per share is not computed because of net loss and no dilution.
 Amounts per share of net assets are computed based on the number of shares of common stock outstanding at each balance sheet date.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                             Yen                                                   U.S. dollars

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Net income (loss):
 Basic                                                                                                                                                       ¥1.62                    ¥(27.50)                    $(0.22)
 Diluted                                                                                                                                                         —                               —                              — 

Cash dividends applicable to the year                                                                                             ¥5.00                      ¥ 5.00                     $ 0.04

                                                                                                                                                                                                                             Yen                                                   U.S. dollars

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Net assets                                                                                                                                             ¥161.03                   ¥126.64                       $1.01

b. Outstanding lease commitment equivalents

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Within 1 year                                                                                                                                          ¥341                        ¥1,507                     $12,056
More than 1 year                                                                                                                                     503                          2,962                       23,696

   Total                                                                                                                                             ¥844                        ¥4,469                     $35,752

Note: Since the total of outstanding lease commitment equivalents (as of the end of the period) and the estimated residual value, as a percentage of 
accounts receivable (as of the end of the period), is small, the outstanding lease commitment equivalents are computed by the interest-inclusive method.

c. Lease rental receivable and depreciation

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Lease rental receivable                                                                                                                        ¥397                        ¥1,626                     $13,008
Depreciation                                                                                                                                             397                          1,626                       13,008

(4) Operating leases (Lessor)

Outstanding lease commitments

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                    2000                         2001                          2001

Within 1 year                                                                                                                                          ¥316                         ¥297                        $2,376
More than 1 year                                                                                                                                     246                            232                           1,856

   Total                                                                                                                                             ¥562                         ¥529                        $4,232

12. Contingent Liabilities

At 31st March 2001, the Companies are contingently liable as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        Yen (millions)                   (thousands)

Notes endorsed and discounted in the ordinary course of business                                                                    ¥1,662                      $13,296
Guarantee of loans principally on behalf of affiliates                                                                                                     2,340                        18,720

                                                                                                                                                                                                      ¥4,002                      $32,016
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14. Segment Information

The Company’s and its consolidated subsidiaries’ businesses are divided into the transportation segment, the real estate segment, the
 retail segment, the leisure and services segment, the construction segment and other.
 The transportation segment includes railways, buses, and distribution services. The real estate segment includes purchase and sale 
of real estate, rental of real estate and property management services. The retail segment includes retailing, trading and sale of oil and
 gasoline. The leisure and services segment consists of travel agency, hotels, golf clubs, and CATV. The construction segment consists of
 civil engineering works, buildings and general construction. Other includes rolling stock maintenance and food products manufacturing.

 As stated in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, the Company adopted the retirement benefit accounting system 
effective from the current term. As a result of the above, segment cost and expenses declined as follows and segment operating 
income increased by the equivalent amount, as compared with the amounts that would have been reported if the previous method 
had been applied consistently. Transportation: ¥3,024 million; real estate: ¥406 million; retail: ¥45 million; leisure and services: ¥91 
million; construction: ¥777 million; other: ¥189 million.

Accounting Changes

As stated in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, until the interim period ended September, 2000, the Company accounted
 for revenue from the media business as other income. In accounting for revenue from cellular phones, revenue, net of cost, was 
included in other income. Effective this term, revenue from the media business is accounted for in the leisure and services segment as
 revenue from operations. Regarding cellular phones, the company adopted a method based on reporting total cellular phone revenue
 and costs. As a result of this change for the year ended 31st March, 2001, leisure and services segment revenue increased ¥4,420 
million (US$35,360 thousand), operating income declined ¥353 million (US$2,824 thousand), other income declined ¥1,176 million 
(US$9,408 thousand); segment assets increased ¥703 million (US$5,624 thousand) and assets in the eliminations/headquarters 
column declined by an equivalent amount, as compared with the amounts that would have been reported if the previous method had
 been applied consistently.
 Information by industry segment for the years ended 31st March, 2000 and 2001 is as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                       Yen (millions)

                                                                                                                                                        Leisure and                                                                                                   Elimination/
31st March, 2000                          Transportation       Real estate           Retail               services          Construction         Other                    Total               Headquarters      Consolidated

Revenues:

 Outside customers                 ¥238,576         ¥125,282     ¥104,529        ¥139,198        ¥372,761        ¥14,882           ¥ 995,228               ¥     —           ¥ 995,228

 Intersegment                                   1,517                3,858             3,238               1,948             53,160            3,575                67,296           (67,296)                         —

                                                             240,093           129,140        107,767           141,146          425,921          18,457          1,062,524           (67,296)               995,228

Cost and expenses                        209,742           100,270        107,832           152,986          410,969          16,548              998,347           (63,536)               934,811

Operating income (loss)             ¥ 30,351          ¥ 28,870            ¥  (65)       ¥ (11,840)         ¥ 14,952         ¥ 1,909             ¥ 64,177          ¥ (3,760)              ¥ 60,417

Total assets                                    ¥677,371         ¥807,487       ¥ 93,227        ¥339,324        ¥341,159        ¥54,027        ¥2,312,595         ¥215,758         ¥2,528,353
Depreciation expenses               ¥ 25,302          ¥ 10,801         ¥ 1,089          ¥ 10,165            ¥ 1,834            ¥ 382             ¥ 49,573             ¥ 1,335              ¥ 50,908

Capital expenditure                     ¥ 94,726          ¥ 36,133            ¥  769          ¥ 13,966            ¥ 2,568            ¥ 168           ¥ 148,330          ¥ (1,590)           ¥ 146,740

                                                                                                                                                                                        Yen (millions)

                                                                                                                                                        Leisure and                                                                                                   Elimination/
31st March, 2001                          Transportation       Real estate           Retail               services          Construction         Other                    Total               Headquarters      Consolidated

Revenues:

 Outside customers                ¥256,633        ¥145,348     ¥ 98,708       ¥149,129       ¥348,920      ¥14,152      ¥1,012,890                ¥      —       ¥1,012,890
 Intersegment                                  3,162                4,724           2,717               1,468             63,275            5,491                80,837           (80,837)                           —

                                                           259,795          150,072      101,425          150,597          412,195         19,643         1,093,727           (80,837)          1,012,890
Cost and expenses                      223,041          127,724      101,130          155,541          397,481         18,141         1,023,058           (74,542)              948,516

Operating income (loss)           ¥ 36,754         ¥ 22,348         ¥   295        ¥ (4,944)         ¥ 14,714        ¥ 1,502           ¥  70,669          ¥ (6,295)           ¥   64,374

Total assets                                   ¥703,960        ¥788,993     ¥ 79,067       ¥320,837       ¥322,512      ¥97,270      ¥2,312,639        ¥187,247       ¥2,499,886
Depreciation expenses             ¥ 29,048         ¥ 11,701       ¥ 1,207         ¥ 10,686           ¥ 1,886           ¥  434            ¥ 54,962            ¥ 1,223            ¥  56,185

Capital expenditure                   ¥ 75,773         ¥ 20,239       ¥ 1,664         ¥ 10,135           ¥ 2,426           ¥  877         ¥ 111,114          ¥ (3,798)          ¥ 107,316
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15. Derivative Transactions

Derivative financial instruments are comprised principally of interest rate swaps and currency swaps to reduce interest rate risks and 
currency risks. The Company and its subsidiaries do not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes.

(a) Hedge accounting

Deferred hedge accounting is used in principle. Special hedge accounting is applied for interest rate swaps that meet the criteria for 
qualification for special hedge accounting. Foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swap contracts are allocated to specific
 hedged risks when they meet the criteria for qualification.

(b) Hedging methods and risks hedged

Hedging method: interest rate swaps, currency swaps, foreign exchange forward contracts
Risks hedged: bonds, loans payable, foreign currency denominated credits and debits, scheduled foreign exchange

(c) Hedging policy

Rules regarding authority to enter into derivative transactions are defined in the Company’s Operations Manual. Exposure to interest 
rate risk and currency risk is hedged in conformity with these regulations. Consolidated subsidiaries engage in derivative transactions
 in conformity with their own internal rules, as a means to reduce exposure to interest rate risk and currency risk arising from their 
regular business operations.

(d) Assessing the effectiveness of a hedge

Rate of changes in the cash flows from hedging instruments and the risks hedged over their respective lapsed periods are used as the
 yardsticks for measuring the effectiveness of the hedge.
 The contract amounts of derivative financial instruments are not a measure of the exposure of the Company through its use of 
derivative financial instruments.
 The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to the risks of credit-related and foreign exchange-related losses in the event of 
non-performance by counterparties to interest rate swaps or currency swaps, but it is not expected that any counterparties will fail 
given their high credit ratings.
 Interest rate swap and currency swap contracts are generally used by the Company to offset changes in the interest rates or 
currencies paid/received.

(1) Currency-related

None

(2) Interest rate-related

                                                                                                                                         Yen (millions)                                                                         U.S. dollars (thousands)

                                                                                                                        2001                                                                                2001
                                                                                                                        Contract Value                                                                                        Contract Value

                                                                                                                                         More than         Market          Unrealized                                           More than           Market          
Unrealized
                                                                                                                 Total                one year             Value             gain (loss)                 Total                  one year              Value            gain (loss)

Interest Rate Swaps:
 Receivable floating rate/
  Payable fixed rate                                           ¥2,000         ¥1,000           ¥68              ¥68            $16,000          $8,000          $544           $544
 (Option value on balance sheet)

                                                                                     ¥2,000         ¥1,000           ¥68              ¥68             $16,000          $8,000          $544           $544

                                                                                                                                                                                        U.S. dollars (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                        Leisure and                                                                                                   Elimination/
31st March, 2001                          Transportation       Real estate           Retail               services          Construction         Other                    Total               Headquarters      Consolidated

Revenues:

 Outside customers            $2,053,064    $1,162,784   $789,664   $1,193,032   $2,791,360    $113,216     $ 8,103,120            $        —      $ 8,103,120
 Intersegment                               25,296             37,792         21,736             11,744          506,200         43,928             646,696        (646,696)                           —

                                                        2,078,360      1,200,576      811,400      1,204,776      3,297,560      157,144         8,749,816        (646,696)          8,103,120
Cost and expenses                   1,784,328      1,021,792      809,040      1,244,328      3,179,848      145,128         8,184,464        (596,336)          7,588,128

Operating income (loss)         $ 294,032      $ 178,784       $ 2,360      $ (39,552)      $ 117,712     $ 12,016         $ 565,352       $ (50,360)         $ 514,992

Total assets                               $5,631,680    $6,311,944   $632,536   $2,566,696   $2,580,096    $778,160    $18,501,112    $1,497,976    $19,999,088
Depreciation expenses           $ 232,384         $ 93,608       $ 9,656        $ 85,488        $ 15,088        $ 3,472         $ 439,696            $ 9,784         $ 449,480

Capital expenditure                 $ 606,184      $ 161,912     $ 13,312        $ 81,080        $ 19,408        $ 7,016         $ 888,912       $ (30,384)          $ 858,528
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16. Related Party Transactions

Prior Fiscal Year (As of 31st March, 2000)

Certain financial information in respect of related parties at 31st March, 2000 is shown below. The most significant related parties at 
31st March, 2000 are affiliate Tokyu Land Corporation and Seinan Tokyu Department Store Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of an affiliate). The 
Company has an 18.1 percent equity ownership in Tokyu Land Corporation and no equity ownership in Seinan Tokyu Department 
Store Co., Ltd.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        Yen (millions)                   (thousands)

Tokyu Land Corporation
 Sales of land (1)

  Book value                                                                                                                                                                            ¥  29                          $  232
  Sales value                                                                                                                                                                       ¥ 1,273                     $ 10,184
Seinan Tokyu Department Store Co., Ltd
 Rental revenue (2)                                                                                                                                                                ¥ 6,205                     $ 49,640
 Deposit received for guarantee                                                                                                                                   ¥25,777                    $206,216

Notes:  (1) Sales value is estimated based on the appraisal of a certified general appraiser.
              (2) Leases for facilities are determined on the same terms as with a third-party customer.

Current Fiscal Year (As of 31st March, 2001)

None

17. Premises Revaluation Account

The land owned for business by Izukyu Corp., a consolidated subsidiary, Tokyu Land Corp., Izukanko Kaihatsu Co., Ltd., Tokyu Recreation
 Co., Ltd., affiliates accounted for under the equity method, and Nagano Tokyu Department Store Co., Ltd. (consolidated subsidiary of 
Tokyu Department Store Co., Ltd., an affiliate accounted for under the equity method) was revalued pursuant to the Law Concerning 
Land Revaluation (Law No. 34, promulgated 31st March, 1998) and the revised Law Concerning Land Revaluation (Revised Law No. 19,
 promulgated 31st March, 2001). The Company booked the share of the revaluation difference in the revaluation balance in the shareholders’
 equity section. Method of revaluation, dates of revaluation and the book value before and after revaluation are as follows.

(1) Izukyu Corporation

Method of revaluation
The value of land is determined based on the price provided by a real estate appraiser, which is described in Article 2, Item 5 of the 
Ordinance Implementing the Law Concerning Land Revaluation (Government Ordinance No. 119, promulgated 31st March, 1998). 
Value of certain sections of the land is determined based on Article 3 of the government ordinance.
  Date of revaluation: 31st March, 2000
  Difference between the market value at fiscal year end and book value after revaluation: –¥121 million (–US$968 thousand)

(2) Tokyu Land Corporation

Method of revaluation
a.  The value of land is determined based on the price provided by a real estate appraiser, which is described in Article 2, Item 5 of the

 Ordinance Implementing the Law Concerning Land Revaluation (Government Ordinance No. 119, promulgated 31st March, 1998).
 Value of certain sections of the land is determined based on Articles 2, 3, and 4 of the government ordinance.

  Date of revaluation:  31st March, 2000
  Difference between the market value at fiscal year end and book value after revaluation: –¥1,366 million (–US$10,928 thousand)
b. The value of land of companies acquired in the current fiscal year as a result of merger through acquisition is determined based on

 the price provided by the real estate appraiser, which is described in Article 2, Item 5 of the Ordinance Implementing the Law 
Concerning Land Revaluation (Government Ordinance No. 119, promulgated 31st March, 1998).

  Date of revaluation: 31st March, 2001
  Book value before revaluation: ¥3,068 million (US$24,544 thousand)
  Book value after revaluation: ¥22,800 million (US$182,400 thousand)

(3) Izu Kankokaihatsu Co., Ltd.

Method of revaluation
The value of land is determined based on the book value registered on the official taxable ledger, which is described in Article 2, Item 3 of
 the Ordinance Implementing the Law Concerning Land Revaluation (Government Ordinance No. 119, promulgated 31st March, 1998)

　   Date of revaluation: 31st January, 2001
  Book value before revaluation: ¥993 million (US$7,944 thousand)
  Book value after revaluation: ¥993 million (US$7,944 thousand)
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(4) Tokyu Recreation Co., Ltd.

Method of revaluation
The value of land is determined based on the book value registered on the official taxable ledger, which is described in Article 2, Item 3 of
 the Ordinance Implementing the Law Concerning Land Revaluation (Government Ordinance No. 119, promulgated 31st March, 1998).

  Date of revaluation: 31st December, 2000
  Book value before revaluation: ¥2,453 million (US$19,624 thousand)
  Book value after revaluation: ¥9,072 million (US$72,576 thousand)

(5) Nagano Tokyu Department Store Co., Ltd.

Method of revaluation
The value of land is determined based on the price provided by the real estate appraiser, which is described in Article 2, Item 4 of the
 Ordinance Implementing the Law Concerning Land Revaluation (Government Ordinance No. 119, promulgated 31st March, 1998).
  Date of revaluation: 31st January, 2001
  Book value before revaluation: ¥8,323 million (US$66,584 thousand)
  Book value after revaluation: ¥8,752 million (US$70,016 thousand)

18. Retirement and Severance Benefits

(1) Employees retirement benefit system

Substantially all employees of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are entitled to a defined-benefit pension, which include, 
Welfare Pension Insurance and Qualified Retirement Pension, upon retirement. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries participate
 in the Small Enterprise Mutual Aid System for Retirement Funds under which employees are also entitled to lump sum benefits upon
 retirement. In certain cases employees are entitled to additional retirement benefits. Such benefits are actuarially valued based on the
 retirement benefit system, but are not defined as liabilities. The Company has also established a retirement benefit trust.

(2) Retirement benefit liabilities

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        Yen (millions)                   (thousands)

a. Retirement benefit liabilities                                                                                                                                     ¥(168,319)             $(1,346,552)
b. Pension fund assets                                                                                                                                                             80,943                      647,544

c. Unfunded retirement benefit liabilities (a + b)                                                                                                         (87,376)                   (699,008)
d. Unamortized difference resulting from changes in accounting standards                                                                —                                 —
e. Unrecognized actuarial liabilities                                                                                                                                    12,122                        96,976
f.  Unrecognized past service liabilities                                                                                                                                       —                                 —

g. Net carried on consolidated balance sheets ( c + d + e + f )                                                                                 (75,254)                   (602,032)
h. Prepaid pension costs                                                                                                                                                               493                           3,944

i.  Reserve for retirement allowance (g - h)                                                                                                                 ¥ (75,747)                $ (605,976)

(3) Retirement benefit expenses (1st April, 2000—31st March, 2001)

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        Yen (millions)                   (thousands)

a. Service expense                                                                                                                                                                   ¥ 6,383                     $ 51,064
b. Interest expense                                                                                                                                                                      4,292                        34,336
c. Expected returns                                                                                                                                                                  (1,544)                      (12,352)
d. Amortization of difference arising from change of accounting standards                                                       69,546                      556,368
e. Amortization of difference arising from actuarial valuation                                                                                           —                                 —
f.  Amortization of past service liability                                                                                                                                      —                                 —

g. Retirement benefit expenses (a + b + c + d + e + f )                                                                                                ¥78,677                   $629,416

Notes: 1.  Apart from the above retirement benefit expense, ¥1,073 million (US$8, 584 thousand) was paid in additional retirement benefits. These 
were charged to income as other expenses.

              2. Retirement benefit expenses of consolidated subsidiaries that use a simplified approach to computing retirement benefits are included in 
“a: Service expense“.
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19. Reclassification

According to amendments to Japanese accounting standards, certain items relating to the prior year have been reclassified to conform
 to the presentation in the current year.

20. Subsequent Events

(1) Conversion of Tokyu Hotel Chain Co., Ltd. into a Wholly Owned Subsidiary through Exchange of Stock

The Board of Directors of the Company and Tokyo Hotel Chain Co., Ltd., an affiliate accounted for by the equity method, met separately
 on 27th December, 2000 and approved resolutions authorizing the conversion of Tokyu Hotel Chain Co., Ltd., into a wholly owned 
subsidiary through exchange of stock on 17th July, 2001. An agreement to that effect was concluded on the same day.
 Tokyu Hotel Chain Co.’s general shareholders meeting on 27th March, 2001 approved the agreement to exchange stock.
 The move will enable the Company (Tokyu Inn Chain) and Tokyu Hotel Chain Co., Ltd. (Tokyu Hotel Chain) to cooperate and 
dynamically and efficiently implement comprehensive business strategies. These initiatives aim at strengthening the competitive 
position of the hotel chains, and enhance their earnings power, in addition to building a powerful brand in the hotel industry, at a time
 when the hotel business is facing a severe environment.
 The exchange of stock will be carried out in compliance with Commercial Code Article 358-1 (Simple exchange of stock). The 
Company will not seek approval at the general shareholders meeting for the agreement to exchange stock.

(2) Tokyu Freight Service Co., Ltd. to Merge with Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd.

Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd. to acquire all Outstanding Shares of Tokyo Tsuun Co., Ltd.
The Board of Directors of the Company and Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd., an affiliate accounted for under the equity method of 
accounting, met separately on 28th May, 2001 and approved resolutions authorizing Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd. to acquire all 
outstanding stock of Tokyo Tsuun Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary, and convert it into a wholly owned subsidiary, and to merge with
 Tokyu Freight Service Co., Ltd., also a consolidated subsidiary.
 An agreement to exchange stock was concluded between Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd. and Tokyo Tsuun Co., Ltd., and a merger 
agreement was concluded between Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd. and Tokyu Freight Service Co., Ltd. on the same day.
 The merger scheduled for 1st April, 2002 will raise the Company’s equity interest in Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd. to 49%. Sotetsu
 Transportation Co., Ltd. will become a consolidated subsidiary, as a result. Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd. will change its name to Tokyu
 Logistic Co., Ltd. on the day of the merger.
 The Company, together with Sotetsu Transportation Co., Ltd. carefully examined the options for strengthening the competitive 
position of its transportation business and developing a program to contribute to Tokyu Group’s growth strategy and came to the 
conclusion that focusing management resources by integrating the Group’s transportation business in the metropolitan Tokyo region was
 imperative. Restructuring of the Group’s transportation business in the Tokyo metropolitan region centering on Sotetsu Transportation
 Co., Ltd. reflects these considerations.

(3) Acquisition of Tokyu Store Chain’s Shares to Make Tokyu Store Chain Co., Ltd. a Subsidiary

The Board of Directors of the Company met on 28th June, 2001 and approved resolutions authorizing the Company to acquire stock of
 Tokyu Store Chain Co., Ltd., an affiliate accounted for by the equity method, to make Tokyu Store Chain a consolidated subsidiary.
 The Company presently holds 22.1%, including 0.9% indirectly, of Tokyu Store Chain’s outstanding shares, but plans to purchase an
 additional 11,594 thousand shares, as outlined above.
 Furthermore, Tokyo Tsuun Co., Ltd. will become a wholly owned consolidated subsidiary due to an exchange of shares with Sotetsu
 Transportation Co., Ltd., as previously mentioned. Sotetsu Transportation will also merge Tokyu Freight Service Co., Ltd. and become a
 subsidiary of the Company. Sotetsu Transportation plans to change its name to Tokyu Logistic Co., Ltd. on 1st April, 2002. As a result of
 these developments, the Company will hold 40.1% of Tokyu Store Chain’s outstanding shares, including 2.4% indirectly. In accordance
 with Article 8-4 of the regulations for the preparation of financial statements concerning exercise of control, the Company is expected
 to make Tokyu Store Chain a consolidated subsidiary from 1st April, 2002.

(4) Basis of presentation of retirement benefit liabilities

a. Allocation of estimated retirement benefit amounts: Straight-line
b. Discount rate: Primarily 3%
c. Expected rate of return: Primarily 3%
d. Amortization period for past service liabilities: —
e. Amortization period of actuarial differences: Primarily 15 years 
f.  Amortization period of difference arising from changes in accounting standards: 1 year
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Report of Independent Accountants

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Tokyu Corporation

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Tokyu Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2001 and 

2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, all 

expressed in yen.  Our audits were made in accordance with auditing standards, procedures and practices generally accepted and 

applied in Japan and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and other auditing procedures as we considered 

necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above, expressed in yen, present fairly the financial position of 

Tokyu Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries at March 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash 

flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan consistently 

applied during the periods except for the change, with which we concur, in the method of accounting for revenue from the media 

business and cellular phones as described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

As described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, Tokyu Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries adopted new 

accounting standards for employees’ retirement and severance benefits, financial instruments and translation of foreign currency 

transactions effective April 1, 2000, and new accounting standards for consolidation effective April 1, 1999 in the preparation of their 

consolidated financial statements.

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31, 2001 are 

presented solely for convenience of the reader.  Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, 

in our opinion, such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

June 29, 2001

See note1 to the consolidated financial statements which explains the basis of preparing the consolidated financial statements of 

Tokyu Corporation under Japanese accounting principles and practices. 

Hibiya Kokusai Building 22F 2-3, 
Uchisaiwai-cho 2-chome, 
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0011, Japan

Tel  +81(3)3509-7800
Fax +81(3)3509-7811
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(As of 1st July, 2001)
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A Brief History of the Tokyu Group

1922    Meguro-Kamata Railway, predecessor 

of Tokyu Corporation, established.

1924    Acquired control of Musashi Railway 

(later to become the Tokyo-Yokohama 

Railway).

1928    Merged with the Den-en Toshi 

Company.

1934    Merged with the Ikegami Railway; 

opened first Toyoko Department Store.

1938    Merged with the Tamagawa Electric 

Railway.

1940    Established Tokyu Car Construction 

(now Toyoko Industry).

1941    Acquired control of Sotetsu 

Transportation.

1942    Merged with Keihin Express and 

Odakyu Electric Railway.

1944    Merged with Keio Electric Railway; 

established Jonan Unso (now Tokyu 

Freight Service).

1945    Acquired control of Kusakaru Kotsu.

1948    Reorganized operations, spinning off 

department stores to Toyoko Kogyo 

(now Tokyu Department Store); also 

spun off Keio Electric Railway, Odakyu 

Electric Railway, and Keihin Electric 

Express Railway; established Tokyu 

Seisakusho (now Tokyu Car); 

established Tokyu Kojunkai.

1949    Established Dai Tokyu Memorial Library.

1950    Established Tokyo Freight Service; 

established New Tokyu Motors (now 

Tokyu Hotel Chain).

1953    Established Tokyu Land; acquired 

control of Shinnippon Kogyo (now 

Tokyu Recreation).

1955    Established the Gotoh Ikuei Kai (Gotoh 

Scholastic Society); established Tokyu 

Golf Course.

1956    Established Tokyu Tourist; acquired 

control of Tokyu Gravel (now Tokyu 

Geox); established Gotoh Planetarium; 

established Toyoko Kogyo (now Tokyu 

Store Chain); acquired control of Tokyu 

Building Service.

1957    Acquired control of Gunma Bus.

1958    Acquired control of Ueda Maruko 

Railway (now Ueda Kotsu); established 

Tokyu Hakuba.

1959    Began development of Nogawa as a 

model district for the Tama Den-en 

Toshi project; established Tokyu 

Construction; established Gotoh 

Museum; established Izukyu

1961    Established Tokyu Agency; established 

Three Hundred Club; established Jonan 

Kotsu (now Tokyu Service).

1964    Acquired control of Shari Bus; merged 

Fuji Air, Nitto Air, and Kita Nihon Air 

into Japan Domestic Air; acquired 

control of Shiroki Metal Industries (now 

Shiroki Corporation).

1965    Established Tokyu Shachi Bus; acquired 

control of Abashiri Kotsu, Inc. and 

Hokumon Bus.

1966    Opened Tokyu Den-en Toshi Line, 

extending from Mizonokuchi to 

Nagatsuta.

1971    Established Nippon Rent’a Car Tomei 

(now Nippon Rent’a Car Tokyu); 

merged Japan Domestic Air with Toa 

Air to form Toa Domestic Air (now 

Japan Air System); acquired control of 

Takamura Zoen (now Tokyu Green 

System).

1972    Established Ishikatsu Exterior.

1973    Established Tokyu Architects & 

Engineers; established United 

Development.

1974    Established Tokyu Foundation for a 

Better Environment.

1975    Established Tokyu Foundation for 

Inbound Students.

1977    Established Shin Tokyu Jidosha; Tokyu 

Department Store issued the Group’s 

first Eurodollar convertible bond 

(US$15 million); opened Tokyu Shin-

Tamagawa Line, extending from 

Shibuya to Futako-Tamagawaen.

1980    The Five-Hundred Club opened.

1982    Merged Tokyu Road with Seiki 

Construction to form Seiki Tokyu 

Kogyo; opened Tama-Plaza Tokyu 

Shopping Center.

1983    Opened Mauna Lani Bay Hotel; opened 

Tokyu Seminar BE in Shibuya; estab-

lished Credit 109 (now Tokyu Card); 

established Tokyu Canada.

1984    Opened Capitol Tokyu Hotel; extended 

Den-en Toshi Line to current distance; 

Noboru Gotoh appointed chairman of 

the Japan Chamber of Commerce.

1986    Established Tokyu Research Institute.

1987    Tokyu Cable Television begins broad-

casting; opened Pan Pacific Hotel 

Singapore.

1989    Opened Bunkamura; opened Wuxi 

Grand Hotel in China.

1990    Established Gotoh Memorial 

Foundation.

1991    Bus operations are spun off as Tokyu 

Bus.

1993    Tokyu and Tokyu Land completed the 

Setagaya Business Square building.

1994    Construction work began on Block 24 

of the Minato Mirai 21 development 

project.

1996    Carrot Tower commercial complex was 

completed.

1997    Queen’s Square Yokohama in the Minato 

Mirai 21 (MM21) Block 24 District opened 

for business; formulated a new Tokyu 

Group slogan, “Toward a Beautiful 

Age — The Tokyu Group.”

1998    Tokyu Cable Television started a 

high-speed Internet connection service 

that leverages the company’s cable 

network; opened Kohoku Tokyu 

Department Store Shopping Center.

2000    Shibuya Mark City, a mixed-use 

building which includes Shibuya Excel 

Hotel Tokyu, opened for business; 

Grandberry Mall, a large-scale, 

family-oriented shopping complex, 

began operations in front of 

Minami-Machida Station.

               Tokyu Corporation, Tokyu Cable 

Television Co., Ltd., and Sony Corpora-

tion formed a strategic alliance in the 

broadband networking business.

2001    Cerulean Tower, a high-rise building 

with office and hotel space, opened for 

business in Shibuya.

               Tokyu Corporation, Tokyu Land 

Corporation and Australia’s Lend Lease 

Corporation formed a business alliance 

in preparation for entry into the REIT 

business.

               With the view to integrating the 

Group’s hotel business, Tokyu Hotel 

Chain cancelled its listing and became 

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tokyu 

Corporation.



Tokyu’s Railway Network

• In April 2000, Tokyu 
Corporation announced a new 

Tokyu Group Management Policy in a move 
to maximize shareholder value. 

• Since the introduction of the plan, the company has 
made steady progress in reorganizing a broad spectrum of 

Group operations. Notably, adhering to a strategy of “selection and 
concentration,” Tokyu has integrated its hotel business and trans-

portation trade business, divested certain Group companies engaged in 
the taxi business and withdrawn from petroleum sales operations.

• At the same time, Tokyu is blazing new trails in growth frontiers such as 
the real estate investment trusts business and in media operations utiliz-
ing high-speed cable networks. 
• And in Shibuya, Tokyu’s home ground and the hub of its operations, the 
company has completed two major mixed-use building projects in the last 
two years: Shibuya Mark City and Cerulean Tower. In railway operations, 
Tokyu is increasing capacity and alleviating congestion by multi-tracking 
certain sectors of track, and investing in other ways to add value to 

railway services. These actions are 
measurably enhancing the image of areas along Tokyu lines.

• All of the above demonstrate Tokyu’s wholehearted 
commitment to fulfilling its social responsibilities while 

building the Tokyu brand into a first-choice trade-
mark of excellence, trusted and admired uni-

versally. 

Contesnts

Financial Highlights

Message Form Management

Reinventing the Tokyu Group

Review of Operations

Financial Section

Organaization Chart

A Brief History of the Tokyu Group

Board of Directors and Corporate Data

On the Cover:
Target on Excellence—Tokyu Corporation has laid a secure 
foundation from which to innovate its way into a promising 
future. On a number of fronts, Tokyu Corporation will promote 
growth strategies and pursue new opportunities with the view
 to serving its customers well and enhancing shareholder value.
 Its target remains fixed—on excellence.
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Board of Directors 
(As of 28th June, 2001)

Corporate Data
(As of 31st March, 2001)

Date of Establishment
2nd September, 1922

Capital
¥107,543 million

Shares Authorized
1,800,000,000 shares

Shares Issued and Outstanding
1,098,348,431 shares

Number of Shareholders
42,518

Principal Shareholders                                                                  % of total

The Dai-ichi Mutual Life Insurance Company                                   7.42
Nippon Life Insurance Company                                                          7.26
Tokyu Land Corporation                                                                          3.49
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd.                                                       3.40
The Chuo Mitsui Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.                                     3.31
The Industrial Bank of Japan, Ltd.                                                         2.97
The Taiyo Mutual Life Insurance Company                                        2.62
The Mitsubishi Trust and Banking Corporation                               2.37
The Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.                                             2.26
The Toyo Trust & Banking Company, Limited (Trust Account)        1.32

Number of Employees
4,241

Stock Exchange Listing
Tokyo Stock Exchange

Independent Auditor
KPMG Century Ota Showa & Co.; Tokyo, Japan

Head Office
5-6, Nampeidai-cho, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 150-8511, Japan
Telephone: 81-3-3477-9603
Facsimile: 81-3-5459-7061

Chairman of the Board & Representative Director
Shinobu Shimizu

President & Representative Director
Kiyofumi Kamijo

Executive Vice President & Representative Director
Yasuhiro Yamaguchi

Senior Managing Directors
Katsuhiko Nishiyama
Sadayasu Nishimoto
Toshiaki Koshimura

Managing Directors
Morikuni Sasakura
Tadashi Igarashi
Takakuni Happo
Katsuhisa Suzuki

Director & Executive Corporate Advisor
Hisashi Nagatoshi

Directors
Tetsu Gotoh
Hisamitsu Tsukagoshi
Akira Komori
Ichigo Umehara
Motoo Kume
Tetsuo Nakahara
Isao Adachi
Hiroshi Shimonagata
Hiroshi Takeoka
Shoichiro Nagayama
Hirosuke Isozaki
Yoshiki Sugita
Yoshizumi Nezu
Shigeru Okada
Kuniyoshi Ihara
Masatake Ueki
Hirokazu Mizuta

Corporate Auditors
Shigetada Miyazaki
Kenichiro Kakimoto
Takahide Sakurai
Josei Itoh
Takeshi Nagano

Forward-Looking Statements
This report is intended to provide information on business results for fiscal 

2000, the year ended 31st March, 2001 and the outlook for Tokyu 

Corporation. It is not to be construed as a solicitation for investments. The 

outlook and plans are based on judgments made by management at the 

time of publication. Therefore, no representation or warranty has been 

made or is given regarding the attainability of estimates and projections. 

Opinions expressed herein are subject to change without notice.
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Tokyu Corporation, which started out as Den-en Toshi Company, began developing the Den-en Chofu and Senzoku districts

 in southwest Tokyo in 1918. Tokyu’s railway operations were inaugurated under the name Meguro-Kamata Railway to serve

 this area in 1922. In the ensuing years, a comprehensive network of seven rail lines and a streetcar line extending from 

Shibuya throughout southwest Tokyo and on to Yokohama has been constructed.

 The expertise and insights gained at the “garden city” project in Den-en Chofu and Senzoku helped Tokyu to initiate 

development of Japan’s largest private-sector real estate project in 1953—Tama Den-en Toshi (“Tama Garden City”). It 

has since grown to encompass 5,000 hectares and is home to almost 530,000 people. Tama Den-en Toshi now ranks as 

one of the most attractive satellite communities in the greater Tokyo area and has measurably enhanced the image of 

areas along Tokyu lines.

 The Tama Den-en Toshi project likewise served as a platform for Tokyu’s growth. Knowledge gained there has enabled 

Tokyu to expand into urban development, hotels, resorts and other activities nationwide. Growth extends beyond Japan: the

 company is also pursuing high-potential opportunities around the Pacific Rim and elsewhere overseas.

Profile
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Five-Year Summary
TOKYU CORPORATION
Years ended 31st March

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                      Yen (millions)                                                                                   (Note 2)

                                                                                        1997                  1998                  1999                  2000                   2001                     2001

Results for the year:
 Revenue from operations                              ¥292,399         ¥284,263          ¥301,977          ¥282,691          ¥292,499         $2,339,992

 Operating income                                                 58,083              54,451              50,373               53,923               46,333                370,664

 Income before income taxes                             11,784              12,496              19,339               10,540               12,365                  98,920

 Net income                                                                6,284                 6,296                 9,501                 6,306                  6,997                  55,976

Amounts per share 
 (in yen and dollars):
 Net income                                                                ¥5.72                 ¥5.73                 ¥8.65                 ¥5.74                  ¥6.37                     $0.05

 Cash dividends (actual)                                            5.00                    5.00                   5.00                   5.00                    5.00                        0.04

Year-end financial position:
 Total assets                                                      ¥1,356,104      ¥1,406,450      ¥1,460,407      ¥1,540,664      ¥1,571,073      $12,568,584

 Shareholders’ equity                                          235,330            236,043            241,535            242,253            248,832            1,990,656
Note: The non-consolidated financial statements presented herein are expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of readers, have been 

translated into United States dollars at the rate of ¥125 to $1.
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Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets
TOKYU CORPORATION
31st March, 2000 and 2001

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

ASSETS                                                                                                                                               2000                         2001                           2001

Current assets:
 Cash                                                                                                                                               ¥26,767                  ¥ 30,563                   $ 244,504

 Marketable securities                                                                                                                 60,864                               —                                   —

 Trade receivables                                                                                                                         20,696                     17,616                      140,928

 Advances to subsidiaries and affiliates                                                                                   5,040                     24,624                      196,992

 Allowance for doubtful accounts                                                                                              (120)                         (377)                        (3,016)

 Inventories (Note 4)                                                                                                                  164,102                   168,247                  1,345,976

 Deferred tax—current (Note 9)                                                                                                 2,522                        3,833                         30,664

 Income tax refund receivable                                                                                                       402                               —                                   —

 Prepaid expenses and other current assets                                                                           7,343                        9,506                         76,048

   Total current assets                                                                                                         287,616                   254,012                  2,032,096

Investments and long-term loans:
 Investments in (Note 3):

  Subsidiaries and affiliates                                                                                                  238,487                   230,370                  1,842,960

  Other securities                                                                                                                       24,546                     76,290                      610,320

 Long-term loans principally to subsidiaries and affiliates                                             16,362                     13,617                      108,936

 Other investments                                                                                                                      26,245                     28,896                      231,168

 Deferred tax—non-current (Note 9)                                                                                        2,750                     16,649                      133,192

 Allowance for doubtful accounts                                                                                           (3,407)                     (8,960)                      (71,680)

   Total investments and long-term loans                                                                    304,983                   356,862                  2,854,896

Property and equipment (Note 5):
 Land                                                                                                                                               138,203                   120,058                      960,464

 Buildings and structures                                                                                                         641,853                   674,940                  5,399,520

 Rolling stock                                                                                                                               122,040                   135,563                 1,084,504 

 Machinery and equipment                                                                                                      79,937                     87,027                      696,216

 Construction in progress                                                                                                        378,319                   381,297                  3,050,376

                                                                                                                                                         1,360,352               1,398,885               11,191,080

 Less accumulated depreciation                                                                                            432,684                   459,469                  3,675,752

   Net property and equipment                                                                                      927,668                   939,416                  7,515,328

Other assets                                                                                                                                    20,397                     20,783                      166,264

                                                                                                                                                       ¥1,540,664            ¥1,571,073            $12,568,584

See the accompanying “Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY                                                                         2000                         2001                           2001

Current liabilities:
 Short-term debt (Note 5)                                                                                                    ¥ 193,580               ¥ 173,445              $ 1,387,560

 Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5)                                                                       55,998                   105,642                      845,136

 Trade payables                                                                                                                             11,887                     15,935                      127,480

 Accrued expenses                                                                                                                       10,197                     10,180                         81,440

 Accrued income taxes                                                                                                                        —                     20,979                      167,832

 Advances received                                                                                                                      75,659                   101,476                      811,808

 Employees’ savings deposits                                                                                                      7,347                               —                                   —

 Other current liabilities                                                                                                             13,617                      19,229                     153,832

  Total current liabilities                                                                                                        368,285                   446,886                  3,575,088

Long-term debt (Note 5)                                                                                                           739,939                   701,202                  5,609,616

Deposits from tenants and golfers (Note 6)                                                                  119,687                   111,492                      891,936

Retirement and severance benefits                                                                                   20,663                     15,892                      127,136

The Urban Railways Improvement Reserve (Note 7)                                                  49,837                      46,769                     374,152

  Total liabilities                                                                                                                    1,298,411               1,322,241               10,577,928

Shareholders’ equity (Note 8):
 Common stock of ¥50 par value:

  Authorized—1,800,000 thousand shares

  Issued—1,098,348 thousand shares                                                                              107,543                   107,543                      860,344

 Capital surplus                                                                                                                           106,223                   106,223                      849,784

 Legal reserve                                                                                                                                12,160                     12,719                      101,752

 Retained earnings:

  Appropriated                                                                                                                                 950                            950                           7,600

  Unappropriated                                                                                                                      15,383                     16,237                      129,896

                                                                                                                                                             242,259                   243,672                  1,949,376

Less cost of common shares of treasury stock                                                                                  6                                 1                                     8

Unrealized holding gains on securities                                                                                             —                        5,161                         41,288

   Net shareholders’ equity                                                                                               242,253                   248,832                  1,990,656

Contingent liabilities (Note 11)

                                                                                                                                                       ¥1,540,664            ¥1,571,073            $12,568,584
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Non-Consolidated Statements of Income
TOKYU CORPORATION
Years ended 31st March, 2000 and 2001

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Revenue from operations:
 Railway                                                                                                                                    ¥124,177                ¥127,990               $1,023,920

 Real estate                                                                                                                                   85,634                     91,127                     729,016

 Hotel                                                                                                                                              42,397                     43,858                     350,864

 Other                                                                                                                                             30,483                     29,524                     236,192

                                                                                                                                                           282,691                   292,499                 2,339,992

Cost of revenue from operations:
 Railway                                                                                                                                         94,677                     95,628                     765,024

 Real estate                                                                                                                                   53,786                     70,439                     563,512

 Hotel                                                                                                                                              44,708                     45,957                     367,656

 Other                                                                                                                                             35,597                     34,142                     273,136

                                                                                                                                                           228,768                   246,166                 1,969,328

   Operating income                                                                                                           53,923                     46,333                     370,664

Other income:
 Interest and dividends                                                                                                                2,691                        2,733                        21,864

 Gain on sale of marketable securities                                                                                    7,962                               —                                  —

 Other                                                                                                                                             22,442                     49,059                     392,472

                                                                                                                                                             33,095                     51,792                     414,336

Other expenses:
 Interest                                                                                                                                         27,367                     27,214                     217,712

 Loss on sale of marketable securities                                                                                          —                            670                           5,360

 Other                                                                                                                                             49,111                     57,876                     463,008

                                                                                                                                                             76,478                     85,760                     686,080

   Income before income taxes                                                                                       10,540                     12,365                        98,920

Income taxes (Note 9):
 Current                                                                                                                                            4,900                     24,325                     194,600

 Deferred                                                                                                                                          (666)                  (18,957)                   (151,656)

                                                                                                                                                                4,234                        5,368                        42,944

   Net income                                                                                                                       ¥ 6,306                    ¥ 6,997                    $ 55,976

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Yen                                                     (Note 2)

Net income per share of common stock (Note 1 (k))                                                           ¥ 5.74                      ¥ 6.37                          $ 0.05

See the accompanying “Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Non-Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
TOKYU CORPORATION
Years ended 31st March, 2000 and 2001

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Common stock:
 Balance at beginning of year                                                                                            ¥107,543                ¥107,543                 $860,344

 Balance at end of year                                                                                                        ¥107,543                ¥107,543                 $860,344

Capital surplus:
 Balance at beginning of year                                                                                            ¥106,223                ¥106,223                 $849,784

 Balance at end of year                                                                                                        ¥106,223                ¥106,223                 $849,784

Legal reserve:
 Balance at beginning of year                                                                                              ¥ 11,602                  ¥ 12,160                   $ 97,280

 Transfer from retained earnings                                                                                                 558                            559                          4,472

 Balance at end of year                                                                                                          ¥ 12,160                  ¥ 12,719                 $101,752

Appropriated retained earnings:
 Balance at beginning of year                                                                                                    ¥ 950                        ¥ 950                     $ 7,600

 Balance at end of year                                                                                                                ¥ 950                        ¥ 950                     $ 7,600

Unappropriated retained earnings:
 Balance at beginning of year                                                                                              ¥ 15,220                  ¥ 15,383                 $123,064

 Cumulative effect of prior years’ deferred taxation resulting 

  from the initial application of deferred tax accounting                                                      —                               —                                 —

 Net income                                                                                                                                     6,306                        6,997                       55,976

 Appropriations:

  Cash dividends                                                                                                                      (5,492)                     (5,492)                     (43,936)

  Transfer to legal reserve                                                                                                        (558)                         (558)                        (4,464)

  Directors’ and statutory auditors’ bonuses                                                                         (93)                            (93)                            (744)

 Balance at end of year                                                                                                          ¥ 15,383                  ¥ 16,237                 $129,896

See the accompanying “Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             (thousands)
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                           (Note 2)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
 Net income                                                                                                                                 ¥ 6,306                   ¥ 6,997                   $ 55,976

 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided 

  by operating activities:

  Depreciation                                                                                                                          32,168                     36,105                    288,840

  Provision for deferred tax                                                                                                     (666)                  (18,957)                 (151,656)

  Provision for the Urban Railways Improvement Reserve                                        (3,117)                    (3,068)                    (24,544)

  Other non-cash items                                                                                                       (10,557)                       5,054                       40,432

 Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

  Trade receivables                                                                                                                     3,091                       3,079                       24,632

  Inventories                                                                                                                              24,368                    (4,145)                    (33,160)

  Trade payables                                                                                                                         1,790                       4,048                       32,384

  Accrued expenses                                                                                                                      870                           (17)                           (136)

  Advances received                                                                                                               19,506                     25,817                    206,536

  Deposits from tenants and golfers                                                                                 (5,815)                    (8,195)                    (65,560)

 Other, net                                                                                                                                   (14,213)                     17,011                    136,088

   Net cash provided by operating activities                                                            ¥ 53,731                 ¥ 63,729                $ 509,832

Cash flows from investing activities:
 Purchase of property and equipment                                                                         ¥(113,968)               ¥(68,687)               $(549,496)

 Proceeds from sale of property and equipment                                                             16,824                     16,821                    134,568

 Changes in marketable and investment securities                                                      (27,093)                     26,144                    209,152

 Changes in investments and long-term loans                                                                 (5,826)                              94                              752

 Advances to subsidiaries and affiliates                                                                              11,281                  (19,585)                 (156,680)

   Net cash used in investing activities                                                                  ¥(118,782)               ¥(45,213)               $(361,704)

Cash flows from financing activities:
 Proceeds from notes                                                                                                             ¥ 52,000                 ¥ 14,500                $ 116,000

 Redemption of notes                                                                                                             (30,000)                  (13,000)                 (104,000)

 Changes in short-term and long-term borrowings                                                       53,638                     13,272                    106,176

 Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper                                                                 35,000                     14,000                    112,000

 Redemption of commercial paper                                                                                    (31,000)                  (38,000)                 (304,000)

 Cash dividends paid                                                                                                                 (5,492)                    (5,492)                    (43,936)

   Net cash provided by financing activities                                                             ¥ 74,146               ¥(14,720)               $(117,760)

Net increase in cash                                                                                                                         9,095                       3,796                       30,368

Cash at beginning of year                                                                                                           17,672                     26,767                    214,136

Cash at end of year                                                                                                                     ¥ 26,767                 ¥ 30,563                $ 244,504

See the accompanying “Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these financial statements.

Non-Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
TOKYU CORPORATION
Years ended 31st March, 2000 and 2001
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Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
TOKYU CORPORATION

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements of Tokyu Corporation have been prepared from the accounts 
maintained by the Company in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Commercial Code and in conformity with
 accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan, which may differ in some material respects from accounting 
principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan.
 In addition, the notes to the non-consolidated financial statements include information which is not required under accounting
 principles generally accepted in Japan but is presented herein as additional information.
(b) Recognition of Revenue

Revenue from sales of land and residential housing in the real estate business is recognized when units are delivered and accepted
 by customers.
(c) Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid securities with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

(d) Securities

Bonds held-to-maturity are amortized or accumulated based on their face value. “Other securities” (by which means those other 
than trading, held-to-maturity, subsidiaries and affiliates) with a market value are carried at that market value. The difference 
between acquisition cost and book value of “Other securities” is recognized in “Unrealized holding gains on securities” irrespective
 of whether unrealized gains or losses have been incurred. The cost of “Other securities” sold is principally computed based on the
 moving average method.
 Until the year ended 31st March, 2000, listed securities had been valued principally at the lower of cost or market, cost being 
determined by the moving average method, and securities other than listed securities had been stated at cost determined by the
 moving average method.
 Effective 1st April, 2000, financial instruments are accounted for by a method prescribed by statements issued by the Business
 Accounting Deliberation Council (BADC) of Japan (22nd January, 1999: Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments). The 
method of valuing securities and golf memberships and the method of appropriation to the reserve for doubtful accounts were 
changed. As a result, net loss before income taxes increased ¥20,814 million (US$166,512 thousand) in the fiscal year ended 31st 
March, 2001 as compared with the amounts that would have been reported if the previous methods had been applied consistently.

 In addition, the purpose of investments in securities held at the beginning of the period was reviewed. Bonds with maturities of
 less than 1 year included in bonds held-to-maturity and in the “Other securities” account were reclassified into the securities account
 in the current assets section. Other securities are classified as investment securities. As a result of the above, securities in the current
 assets section declined ¥60,864 million (US$486,912 thousand) and investment securities increased by the equivalent amount.
(e) Inventories

Residential land lots and buildings are valued at cost, with cost being determined by the weighted average (for the region) method
 and the specific identification method. Other inventories are valued at cost, which is determined by one of the specific identification
 method, the weighted average method or the last cost method.
 Cost does not include interest expenses incurred during or after the development of real estate.
(f) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost except for land which is revaluated. Depreciation is principally computed by the 
declining-balance method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets according to general class, type of construction and 
use.
 Repairs and maintenances which do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are expensed.
(g) Leases

Non-cancelable lease transactions are primarily accounted for as operating leases (whether such leases are termed operating or 
finance leases) except for lease agreements which stipulate the transfer of ownership of the leased assets to the lessee which are
 accounted for as finance leases.
(h) Income Taxes

The Company records income taxes currently payable based upon the determination of taxable income.
 Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting
 purposes and such amounts recognized for tax purposes. These deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax laws.
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(i) Retirement and Severance Benefits

Until the year ended 31st March, 2000, accrued retirement benefits were stated at 40% of the amount which would be required to
 be paid if all employees covered by the un-funded pension plans voluntarily terminated their employment at the balance sheet 
date. The Company has funded a tax-qualified pension plan. Installments to plan assets are accounted for as costs when contributed.
 Prior service cost is being funded and expensed over a period of approximately 20 years.
 While Company have no legal obligation, it is customary practice in Japan to make lump-sum payments to directors or statutory
 auditors upon retirement with the approval of shareholders at the annual shareholders’ meeting. According to established guidelines
 in 1999, the amount of such allowance is computed based upon payment factors determined by position and length of service as
 director or statutory auditor. Amounts payable under the plan have been provided as unfunded retirement allowances, the balance
 of which at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 was ¥1,398 million and ¥1,351 million (US$10,808 thousand), respectively.
 Effective from the year ended 31st March, 2001, the Company adopted the new accounting standard for retirement benefits 
(“Opinion Concerning Establishment of Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefit”, the Business Accounting Deliberation Council,
 16th June, 1998). In accordance with this standard, allowance for retirement benefits for employees is provided based on the 
estimated retirement benefit obligation and pension assets. As a result, retirement benefit expense declined ¥2,108 million, 
operating income increased by the equivalent amount, and net loss before income taxes increased ¥22,690 million, as compared 
with the amounts that would have been reported if the previous method had been applied consistently.
 The un-funded prior period retirement benefit reserve and corporate pension fund reserve liabilities are included in the reserve
 for retirement and severance benefits.
(j) Foreign Exchange

All foreign currency denominated credits and debits are translated into yen amounts at the rates of exchange in effect at the 
balance sheet date, and translation gains or losses are accounted for in the Statements of Income. Effective 1st April, 2000, the 
translation into Japanese yen of foreign currency denominated transactions is made by the method prescribed by the statements
 issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council (BADC) of Japan (22nd October, 1999: Revision of Standards for Foreign 
Currency Denominated Transactions). As a result, net loss before income taxes for the year ended 31st March, 2001 was 
increased by ¥20 million.
(k) Net Income per Share

The computation of net income per share of common stock is based upon a weighted average of the number of shares outstanding
 during each year.
(l) Accounting Changes

Until the interim period ended September 2000, the Company accounted for revenue from the media business as other income. In
 accounting for sales of cellular phones, the amount obtained after offsetting costs against revenues was stated in other income. 
Effective this term, revenue from the media business is included in operating revenue. In accounting for revenue from cellular 
phones, revenue, net of cost, is stated in other income. As a result of this change, revenue from operating increased ¥4,420 million,
 operating income declined ¥353 million, and other income declined ¥1,176 million, as compared with the amounts that would 
have been reported if the previous method had been applied consistently.
 The change reflects our focus on the cellular phone business in our media business strategy. The Company has set up a strategic
 business promotion division and is expanding the network of media business offices. The reclassification of the income 
statements reflects our understanding that revenue from the said business should be reported to reflect the business activities 
which have been adopted.
 The above mentioned business network started operating in the second half of the fiscal year, and therefore revenue and income
 from the media business were reported in the interim business results in accordance with the previous methods.

2. Basis of Translating Financial Statements

The non-consolidated financial statements presented herein are expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of readers, have
 been translated into United States dollars at the rate of ¥125=U.S.$1. This translation should not be construed as a representation
 that any of the amounts shown could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

3. Securities

Current Fiscal Year (As of 31st March, 2001)

Investments in Subsidiaries and Affiliates (with market quotations)

                                                                                                                                 Yen (millions)                                                                      U.S. dollars (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                                       Unrealized                                                                                     Unrealized
                                                                                                Book value           Market value            gain or loss              Book value           Market value            gain or loss

Investments in:
 Subsidiaries                                                     ¥31,157             ¥28,877             ¥ (2,280)             $249,256           $231,016          $ (18,240)
 Affiliates                                                             45,033                66,818                21,785               360,264              534,544              174,280
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4. Inventories

Inventories at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 are summarized as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Real estate business:
 Land for development                                                                                                        ¥160,599                ¥163,032               $1,304,256
 Residential housing                                                                                                                        820                        2,392                        19,136

                                                                                                                                                           161,419                   165,424                 1,323,392
Materials and supplies                                                                                                                    2,683                        2,823                        22,584

                                                                                                                                                        ¥164,102                ¥168,247               $1,345,976

  At 31st March, 2000 and 2001 costs did not exceed market value.

5. Short-Term Debt and Long-Term Debt

Short-term debt at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 is summarized as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Bank loans, interest 0.62 percent to 1.6 percent
 (2000: 0.66 percent to 0.68357 percent)                                                                          ¥169,580                ¥173,445               $1,387,560
Commercial Paper, interest 0.046 percent to 0.365 percent                                            24,000                               —                                  —

                                                                                                                                                        ¥193,580                ¥173,445               $1,387,560

  Long-term debt at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 is summarized as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

1.8 percent Convertible Bonds, maturing 2002                                                                ¥ 14,690                  ¥ 14,690                 $ 117,520
Floating Rate Notes, due 2000–2011                                                                                       12,800                     13,800                     110,400
USD Reverse Dual Currency Note, due 2009–2011                                                                3,000                        4,000                        32,000
1.15 percent to 6.25 percent Notes, due 2001–2019                                                        320,000                   319,500                 2,556,000
Loans, from Japanese banks and insurance 
 Companies maturing 1999–2022, interest 0.88 percent to 
 8.5 percent (2000: 0.67857 percent to 8.5 percent)
 Secured                                                                                                                                      220,100                   227,118                 1,816,944
 Unsecured                                                                                                                                 216,122                   222,165                 1,777,320
Secured loan from Japan Railway Construction Public Corporation, 
 interest 5.1 percent, Maturing in installments through 2006                                          9,225                        5,571                        44,568

                                                                                                                                                           795,937                   806,844                 6,454,752
Less current portion                                                                                                                      55,998                   105,642                     845,136

                                                                                                                                                        ¥739,939                ¥701,202               $5,609,616

  The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt after 2002 are as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
Year ending 31st March,                                                                                                                                                                                Yen (millions)                   (thousands)

2003                                                                                                                                                                                  ¥101,190                  $ 809,520
2004                                                                                                                                                                                       93,831                     750,648
2005                                                                                                                                                                                       83,183                     665,464
2006                                                                                                                                                                                       84,338                     674,704
2007 and thereafter                                                                                                                                                        338,660                  2,709,280

                                                                                                                                                                                            ¥701,202                $5,609,616

  The following assets are provided as security for loans payable and guarantee of obligations of ¥229,325 million and ¥232,689 
million (US$1,861,512 thousand) at 31st March, 2000 and 2001, respectively.
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6. Deposits from Tenants and Golfers

Deposits from tenants and golfers at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 are summarized as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Deposits from tenants of leased property                                                                          ¥ 56,788                  ¥ 54,266                 $434,128
Deposits from members of golf clubs                                                                                     62,899                     57,226                   457,808

                                                                                                                                                        ¥119,687                ¥111,492                 $891,936

  The Company has received guarantee and lease deposits from tenants of leased property according to lease agreements. These
 guarantee deposits are refundable to the tenants generally in 10 equal annual installments commencing in the 11th year, and 
lease deposits are refundable when contracts are cancelled. Deposits from members of golf clubs are refundable to the members
 at the date of retirement from the golf clubs.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Property and equipment, at net book value:
 Railway property                                                                                                                  ¥246,002                ¥276,351               $2,210,808
 Other property                                                                                                                           36,925                     35,459                     283,672

                                                                                                                                                        ¥282,927                ¥311,810               $2,494,480

  As is customary in Japan, additional security must be given if requested by lending institutions under certain circumstances, and
 generally banks have the right to offset cash deposited with them against any debts or obligations that become due, and, in case
 of default and certain other specified events, against all other debts payable to the bank.
 In accordance with customary business practices in Japan, substantial deposit balances (generally in the form of time deposits)
 are maintained with banks from which the Company has borrowings. Withdrawal of such deposits is not legally restricted.
 For the holders of the 1.8 percent Convertible Bonds, the Company has agreed not to provide assets as security for other domestic
 bonds, unless the existing bondholders participate equally in such security. In the indenture of the bonds, the Company has agreed
 that the aggregate amount of payments of cash dividends may not exceed ¥6,000 million (US$48,000 thousand) plus the aggregate
 amount of net income of the Company from the year ended 31st March, 1988.
 All convertible bonds at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 were convertible, at the current conversion price, into approximately 7,559 
thousand shares of common stock.
 The conversion price at 31st March, 2001 is as follow:
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             Conversion price

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   (Yen)                        (U.S. dollars)

1.8 percent Convertible Bonds, maturing 2002                                                                                                            ¥1,943.50                $15.548

 The conversion and subscription prices are subject to change in the case of certain events including stock splits and the issue of
 common stock at less than market price.

7. The Urban Railways Improvement Reserve

In connection with the enactment of the Law for the Urban Railways Improvement Reserve in April 1986, the Company is required
 to provide for a reserve for the cost of specific construction projects which are aimed at strengthening railway transport capacity,
 in an amount equivalent to 10 percent (increased from 5 percent since 1st September, 1995) of passenger fares following the 
increase made in 1988. The provision for the reserve made in accordance with the law is deductible for tax purposes and the 
reserve must be reversed into income ten years after the provision or upon completion of the relevant construction projects, 
whichever comes earlier.

8. Shareholders’ Equity

Under the Commercial Code, the Company shall set aside as a legal reserve at least 10 percent of the amount to be disbursed as 
distribution of retained earnings until such legal reserve equals 25 percent of stated capital. This reserve is not available for 
dividends but may be used to reduce a deficit or may be transferred to stated capital.
 Cash dividends and appropriations to the legal reserve charged to retained earnings during the years ended 31st March, 2000 
and 2001 represent dividends paid out during such years and the related appropriations to the legal reserve.
 The accompanying financial statements do not include any provision for the dividends of ¥2.50 (US$0.02) per share totalling 
¥2,746 million (US$21,968 thousand) and bonuses for directors and statutory auditors totalling ¥93 million (US$744 thousand) 
declared in June 2001 nor for the related appropriation to the legal reserve amounting to ¥284 million (US$2,272 thousand).
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9. Income Taxes

The Company is subject to a number of taxes based on income, which in aggregate resulted in a normal tax rate of approximately
 42 percent in 2000 and 2001, respectively.
 The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
 at 31st March, 2000 and 2001 are as follows:
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Deferred tax assets:
 Land and residential housing                                                                                             ¥1,033                        ¥ 300                       $ 2,400
 Allowance for doubtful accounts                                                                                             337                         2,605                         20,840
 Retirement and severance benefits                                                                                    2,008                      12,040                         96,320
 Securities                                                                                                                                              4                         8,350                         66,800
 Accrued bonuses to employees                                                                                               785                            866                            6,928
 Amortization of bond issue cost                                                                                              396                            375                            3,000
 Accrued business tax deductible in income taxes                                                               69                         2,006                         16,048
 Other                                                                                                                                                 659                            723                            5,784

   Total deferred tax assets                                                                                              ¥5,291                   ¥27,265                   $218,120

Deferred tax liabilities:
 Gain on establishment of retirement benefit trust                                                            ¥　                   ¥ (3,745)                  $ (29,960)
 Unrealized holding gains on securities                                                                                    —                      (2,961)                      (23,688)
 Business tax refund receivable                                                                                                 (19)                                —                                   —
 Other                                                                                                                                                   —                            (76)                             (608)

   Total deferred tax liabilities                                                                                          ¥ (19)                  ¥ (6,782)                  $ (54,256)

   Net deferred tax assets                                                                                                ¥5,272                   ¥20,483                   $163,864

 

10. Leases

All finance lease transactions by the Company other than those deemed to transfer ownership of the leased assets to the lessee, 
are accounted for by a method similar to that applicable to ordinary operating leases.

(1) Finance lease transactions other than those by which the ownership of leased assets is transferred to the lessee (Lessees).

a. The acquisition cost equivalents, accumulated depreciation equivalents, and balance equivalents of leased assets at the end of period

                                                                                                                         Yen (millions)                                                                                            U.S. dollars (thousands)

                                                                       2000                                                             2001                                                               2001
                                                                                                                                  Balance                                                                                   Balance                                                                                   Balance
                                                            Acquisition       Accumulated       equivalents at        Acquisition       Accumulated      equivalents at        Acquisition       Accumulated       equivalents at
                                                                   cost               depreciation           the end of                  cost               depreciation           the end of                  cost               depreciation           the end of
                                                            equivalents         equivalents                period               equivalents         equivalents                period               equivalents         equivalents               period

Machinery & Autos           ¥ 286           ¥130              ¥156              ¥323            ¥152              ¥171            $2,584         $1,216          $1,368
Others                                      946             362                584                 666              203                 463              5,328           1,624             3,704

   Total                      ¥1,232           ¥492              ¥740              ¥989            ¥355              ¥634            $7,912         $2,840          $5,072
Note: Since outstanding lease commitments (as of the end of the period), as a percentage of tangible fixed assets (as of the end of the term), is 

small, acquisition cost equivalents are computed by the interest-inclusive method.

b. Outstanding lease commitment equivalents
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Within 1 year                                                                                                                                   ¥201                         ¥181                         $1,448
More than 1 year                                                                                                                              539                           453                            3,624

   Total                                                                                                                                      ¥740                         ¥634                         $5,072

  Since outstanding lease commitments (as of the end of the period), as a percentage of tangible fixed assets (as of the end of the
 period), are small, outstanding lease commitment equivalents are computed by the interest-inclusive method.

c. Lease rental charge and depreciation equivalents
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Lease rental charge                                                                                                                       ¥220                         ¥180                         $1,440
Depreciation equivalents                                                                                                              220                           180                            1,440
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12. Amounts per Share

The computation of basic net income (loss) per share is based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock 
outstanding during each year. Diluted net income (loss) per share is not computed because there was no dilution.
 Amounts per share of net assets are computed based on the number of shares of common stock outstanding at each balance sheet date.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Net income (loss):
 Basic                                                                                                                                               ¥5.74                         ¥6.37                       $0.05
 Diluted                                                                                                                                                 —                                —                              —

Cash dividends applicable to the year                                                                                     ¥5.00                         ¥5.00                       $0.04

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Net assets                                                                                                                                     ¥220.57                   ¥226.55                       $1.81
 

d. Method of calculating depreciation equivalents
Depreciation equivalents are calculated assuming the lease period to be the useful life and residual value to be zero.

(2) Operating leases (Lessees)

Outstanding lease commitment equivalents

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Within 1 year                                                                                                                                 ¥ 1,687                     ¥ 1,216                       $ 9,728
More than 1 year                                                                                                                           19,862                      18,841                     150,728

   Total                                                                                                                                  ¥21,549                   ¥20,057                   $160,456

 (3) Operating leases (Lessor)

Outstanding lease commitments

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                          Yen (millions)                                        (thousands)

                                                                                                                                                             2000                         2001                           2001

Within 1 year                                                                                                                                     ¥316                          ¥212                        $1,696
More than 1 year                                                                                                                                 246                            183                           1,464

   Total                                                                                                                                        ¥562                          ¥395                        $3,160

 

11. Contingent Liabilities

At 31st March, 2001, the company is contingently liable as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              U.S. dollars
                                                                                                                                                                                                                               Yen (millions)                   (thousands)

Notes endorsed and discounted in the ordinary course of business                                                                ¥ 111                           $ 888
Guarantee of loans on behalf of:
 Tokyu YMM Properties Co., Ltd.                                                                                                                               27,375                      219,000
 Tokyu Canada Corporation                                                                                                                                         6,990                        55,920
 Tokyu Finance and Accounting Co., Ltd                                                                                                                  9,870                        78,960
 Other, principally subsidiaries and affiliates                                                                                                       19,116                      152,928
 Undertaking guarantee on behalf of a subsidiary and affiliates                                                                     6,101                        48,808

                                                                                                                                                                                             ¥69,563                   $556,504

 

13. Reclassification

According to amendments to Japanese accounting standards, certain items relating to the prior year have been reclassified to 
conform to the presentation in the current year.

14. Subsequent Events

See Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of Independent Accountants
TOKYU CORPORATION

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Tokyu Corporation

We have audited the non-consolidated balance sheets of Tokyu Corporation  as of March 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related 

non-consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, all expressed in yen.  Our 

audits were made in accordance with auditing standards, procedures and practices generally accepted and applied in Japan 

and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the 

circumstances.

In our opinion, the non-consolidated financial statements referred to above, expressed in yen, present fairly the financial position 

of Tokyu Corporation at March 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in 

conformity with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan consistently applied during the periods except 

for the change, with which we concur, in the method of accounting for revenue from the media business and cellular phones as 

described in Note 1 to the non-consolidated financial statements.

As described in Note 1 to the non-consolidated financial statements, Tokyu Corporation adopted new accounting standards for 

employees’ retirement and severance benefits, financial instruments and translation of foreign currency transactions effective 

April 1, 2000 in the preparation of its non-consolidated financial statements.

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31, 2001 

are presented solely for convenience of the reader.  Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts 

and, in our opinion, such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 2 to the non-consolidated financial statements.

June 29, 2001

See note1 to the non-consolidated financial statements which explains the basis of preparing the non-consolidated financial 

statements of Tokyu Corporation under Japanese accounting principles and practices.
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